Public Document Pack
Agenda for Council
Wednesday, 21st October, 2020, 6.00 pm
To: All elected Members of the Council; Honorary Aldermen
Venue: Online via the Zoom App. All Councillors and registered
speakers will have been sent an appointment with the meeting
link.

East Devon District Council
Blackdown House
Border Road
Heathpark Industrial Estate
Honiton
EX14 1EJ
DX 48808 HONITON

Contact: Susan Howl, Democratic Services Manager;
01395 517541; email showl@eastdevon.gov.uk

Tel: 01404 515616
www.eastdevon.gov.uk

(or group number 01395 517546)
Issued Monday, 12 October 2020
Important - this meeting will be conducted online and recorded by Zoom only.
Please do not attend Blackdown House.
Members are asked to follow the Protocol for Remote Meetings
This meeting is being recorded by EDDC for subsequent publication on the Council’s
website and will be streamed live to the Council’s Youtube Channel at
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCmNHQruge3LVI4hcgRnbwBw
Public speakers are now required to register to speak – for more information please use the
following link: https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/have-your-say-atmeetings/all-other-virtual-public-meetings/#article-content

Dear Sir/Madam
Meeting of the Council of the District of East Devon on
Wednesday, 21st October, 2020 at 6.00 pm
You are called upon to attend the above meeting to be held online. It is proposed that the
matters set out on the agenda below will be considered at the meeting and resolution or
resolutions passed as the Council considers expedient.
Yours faithfully

Chief Executive

1

Public speaking
Information on public speaking is available online

page 1

2

Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 5 - 22)

3

Apologies

4

Declarations of interest
Guidance is available online to Councillors and co-opted members on making
declarations of interest

5

Matters of urgency
Information on matters of urgency is available online

6

Announcements from the Chairman and Leader

7

Confidential/exempt item(s)
To agree any items to be dealt with after the public (including the Press) have
been excluded. There are no items which officers recommend should be dealt
with in this way, but if confidential minutes from Cabinet and/or the Council’s
Committees are being discussed, Officers may recommend consideration in the
private part of the meeting.

8

To answer questions asked by Members of the Council pursuant to
Procedure Rules No. 9.2 and 9.5 (Pages 23 - 42)

9

Reports from the Cabinet and the Council's Committees and questions on
those reports (Pages 43 - 44)
a) Minutes of Cabinet held on 30 September 2020. Minute numbers 196 212 (Pages 45 - 55)
b) Minutes of Cabinet held on 8 October 2020. Minute numbers 213 - 226
(Pages 56 - 63)
c) Minutes of Scrutiny Committee held on 10 September 2020. Minute
numbers 78 - 86 (Pages 64 - 67)
d) Minutes of Overview Committee held on 24 September 2020. Minute
numbers 59 - 65 (Pages 68 - 72)
e) Minutes of Housing Review Board held on 17 September 2020. Minute
numbers 63 - 84 (Pages 73 - 117)
f)

Minutes of Strategic Planning Committee held on 16 September 2020.
Minute numbers 54 - 61 (Pages 118 - 127)

g) Minutes of Planning Committee held on 9 September 2020. Minute
numbers 145 - 152 (Pages 128 - 132)
page 2

h) Minutes of Audit & Governance Committee held on 24 September 2020.
Minute numbers 33 - 50 (Pages 133 - 137)
i)

10

Minutes of Licensing & Enforcement Committee held on 3 September
2020. Minute numbers 41 - 50 (Pages 138 - 141)

Motion: Towards Gender Equality at East Devon District Council
That Council;
1) Notes the gendered language within the 1972 Local Government Act and that
the Council's Constitution follows the language of this legislation.
2) Further notes with concern new data from the Fawcett Society following the
2019 local government elections that found that women made up just 35% of
councillors in England.
3) Acknowledges with disappointment that women make up just 30% of
councillors on East Devon District Council which is below the national average.
4) Believes that the membership should address the Chairs of any committees,
panels, forums or groups as the ‘Chair’ rather than Chairman
5) Resolves that the Constitution be appropriately revised to accommodate the
title of ‘Chair’ rather than ‘Chairman’ with delegated authority given to the
Monitoring Officer to make the necessary amendments.
6) Commits to ensuring gender neutral language is used across the Council in our
internal and external communications considering it a small but necessary step
to encourage more women to stand to represent East Devon.
7) Agrees with the Fawcett Society's call for Councils to change their maternity
policies for Councillors on Special Responsibility Allowances and notes with
concern that only 8% of Councils have maternity policies for senior Cabinetlevel councillors and 7% for councillors who receive only the Basic Allowance.
8) Acknowledges that, although we have a policy for maternity pay for councillors
without extended roles, our current Allowances Scheme does not extend
maternity pay for councillors on a Special Responsibility Allowance with current
East Devon District Council policy stating that such allowances 'cease to be
paid if a councillor is unable to continue with those duties'.
9) Asks the Monitoring Officer / Strategic Lead for HR to write a report to the
Cabinet on how we may seek to adopt the Fawcett Society’s recommendation
of having maternity pay for Councillors with extended roles.
10) Notes that Fawcett Society research has found that a third of female
councillors have experienced sexist comments from their colleagues.
11) Refer to the Standards Committee the Fawcett Society's recommendation
that new clauses in the Code of Conduct against sexism be introduced.
Proposed by: Councillor Kathy McLauchlan
Seconded by: Councillor Paul Millar
Supported by Councillors: Sarah Jackson, John Loudoun, Eleanor Rylance, Sam
Hawkins, Olly Davey, Joe Whibley, Marianne Rixson and Paul Arnott.

Decision making and equalities

page 3

For a copy of this agenda in large print, please contact the Democratic
Services Team on 01395 517546

page 4

Agenda Item 2
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Council held at Online via the Zoom App on 20
August 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 8.15 pm

79

Public speaking
The Chair welcomed members of the public and Councillors to the meeting and explained
that all participants were taking part remotely and the meeting was also being viewed online
and recorded.
The Chair then started the meeting by doing a roll call of those present, and confirmed that
the meeting was quorate.
During the meeting the public would be able to participate if they had pre-registered to
speak. Two members of the public had pre-registered.
Mr Andrew Biddiscombe spoke in support of the Council continuing to participate in the
Greater Exeter Strategic Plan (GESP) and noted that the Plan was in draft and in its early
stages. Mr Biddiscombe advised that a new vision and a co-ordinated partnership approach
would be needed to secure large scale funding in the future.
Mr Anthony Sayers, representing the Farringdon Neighbourhood Plan Steering Committee,
advised that GESP should be sustainability led and lacked evidence to support proposed
housing numbers. Mr Sayers was of the view that GESP was controlled by a small group of
people and was not fit for purpose.

80

Minutes of previous Council meetings
(a)

Minutes of the previous meeting of Council on 26 February 2020
The minutes of the previous meeting of the Council held on 26 February 2020
were confirmed and signed as a true record.

(b)

Minutes of the Extraordinary Virtual meeting of Council of 28 May
2020 at 5pm Minute numbers 68- 69
The minutes of the Extraordinary Virtual meeting of the Council held on 28 May
2020 at 5 pm were confirmed and signed as a true record.

(c)

Minutes of the Extraordinary Virtual meeting of Council of 28 May at
5.30pm 2020 Minute numbers 70 - 72
The minutes of the Extraordinary Virtual meeting of the Council held on 28 May
2020 at 5.30pm were confirmed and signed as a true record.

(d)

Minutes of the Extraordinary Virtual meeting of Council of 8 June
2020 Minute numbers 73 - 75
The minutes of the Extraordinary Virtual meeting of the Council held on 8 June
2020 were confirmed and signed as a true record.

page 5

Council 20 August 2020

(e)

81

Minutes of the Extraordinary Virtual meeting of Council of 24 June
2020 Minute numbers 76-78
The minutes of the Extraordinary Virtual meeting of the Council held on 24
June 2020 were confirmed and signed as a true record.

Declarations of interest
86q. Minutes of Strategic Planning Committee held virtually on 23 July 2020 Minute
numbers 48 - 53.
Councillor Ian Hall, Personal, Member of Devon County Council.
90. Motion: Support for Women Against State Pension Inequality (WASPI) impacted
upon by Covid-19.
Councillor Jack Rowland, Personal, Partner may be affected depending on
Government action. Cllr Rowland would not vote.
90. Motion: Support for Women Against State Pension Inequality (WASPI) impacted
upon by Covid-19.
Councillor Kim Bloxham, Personal, Could potentially gain depending on Government
action. Cllr Bloxham would not take part in the discussion or vote.
90. Motion: Support for Women Against State Pension Inequality (WASPI) impacted
upon by Covid-19.
Councillor Val Ranger, Personal, Could potentially gain depending on Government
action.

82

Matters of urgency
There were no matters of urgency.

83

Announcements from the Chairman and Leader
The Chair explained how she came to be involved in local politics which was around
concerns over probity in planning. She explained that the Council needed to take positive
steps and have in place robust processes going forward and for members to have behaviour
beyond reproach. The Leader referred to perception around previous actions of the Council
in relation to investigations and site allocations in planning and announced that with the
recent Government consultations on changes to the planning regime, the Council’s imminent
decision on GESP and progression of a Local plan that there was a need to progress with
absolute clarity and commitments to the highest standards of member and officer probity.
He confirmed that he attended a meeting which the Chair had called along with the Chair of
the Planning Committee, Deputy Leader, Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer to discuss
these matters and that there would be a further meeting following which he would formally
write to the Chair and Chief Executive advising that Cabinet would receive a report to
discuss how to structure work on this topic.

84

Confidential/exempt item(s)
There were no confidential/exempt items.

page 6

Council 20 August 2020

85

To answer questions asked by Members of the Council pursuant to
Procedure Rules No. 9.2 and 9.5
Six questions had been submitted in accordance with Procedure Rule 9.2. The questions
and answers had been circulated with the agenda and published on the website. Councillors
submitting questions are entitled to put a related supplementary question (Procedure Rule
9.5). A summary of the supplementary question asked and the response is set out below.
Q 6: Cllr Faithful asked a supplementary question regarding the approval of planning
application 19/2832/MFUL and requested that the Council makes enquiries into false or
misleading statements made in planning applications and the number of instances of this
happening.
In response, the Chair advised that this would be considered after the meeting and a reply
would be provided.

86

Reports from the Cabinet and the Council's Committees and
questions on those reports
The Chair requested that the minutes of the following committees be received and any
recommendations to Council be approved.

(a)

Minutes of Cabinet held on 4 March 2020 Minute numbers 146-163
Cllr Arnott presented the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 4 March 2020.
These were agreed.

(b)

Minutes of Cabinet held virtually on 9 June 2020 Minute numbers 164
- 169
Cllr Arnott presented the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held virtually on 9 June
2020. These were agreed.

(c)

Minutes of Cabinet held virtually on 18 June 2020 Minute numbers
170 - 175
Cllr Arnott presented the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held virtually on 18 June
2020. These were agreed.

(d)

Minutes of Cabinet held virtually on 21 July 2020 Minute numbers 176
- 195
Cllr Arnott presented the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held virtually on 21 July
2020. These were agreed.
RESOLVED:
That Council formally ratifies the Strata Business Plan 2020/21 and beyond.
The recommendation to note and agree the programme of meetings September
2020 to May 2021 would be considered under agenda item 12.

(e)

Minutes of Scrutiny Committee held on 5 March 2020 Minute number
60-69

page 7

Council 20 August 2020
Cllr Brown presented the minutes of the Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 5
March 2020. These were agreed.
RESOLVED:
That the decision made by Cabinet called in by Members for scrutiny in
accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules – Queens Drive
Development Project, be referred back to Cabinet as the matter is subject to a
further report and consideration.

(f)

Minutes of Scrutiny Committee held virtually on 21 May 2020 Minute
numbers 70 - 77
Cllr Brown presented the minutes of the Scrutiny Committee held virtually on 21
May 2020. These were agreed.

(g)

Minutes of Overview Committee held on 27 February 2020 Minute
numbers 50-58
Cllr Hookway presented the minutes of the Overview Committee held on 27
February 2020. These were agreed.

(h)

Minutes of Development Management Committee held on 3 March
2020 Minute numbers 97- 105
Cllr Wragg presented the minutes of the Development Management Committee
meeting held on 3 March 2020. These were agreed.

(i)

Minutes of Development Management Committee held virtually on 18
May 2020 Minute numbers 106 - 113
Cllr Wragg presented the minutes of the Development Management Committee
held virtually on 18 May 2020. These were agreed.

(j)

Minutes of Planning Committee held virtually on 15 July 2020 Minute
numbers 114 - 126
Cllr Wragg presented the minutes of the Planning Committee held virtually on 15
July 2020. These were agreed.

(k)

Minutes of Planning Committee held virtually on 22 July 2020 Minute
numbers 127- 136
Cllr Wragg presented the minutes of the Planning Committee held virtually on 22
July 2020. These were agreed.

(l)

Minutes of Planning Committee held virtually on 29 July 2020 Minute
numbers 137- 145
Cllr Wragg presented the minutes of the Planning Committee held virtually on 29
July 2020. These were agreed.

page 8

Council 20 August 2020

(m)

Minutes of Licensing & Enforcement Committee held virtually on 27
July 2020 Minute numbers 34 - 40
Cllr Whibley presented the minutes of the Licensing & Enforcement Committee
meeting held virtually on 27 July 2020. These were agreed.

(n)

Minutes of Licensing & Enforcement Sub Committee held on 11
March 2020 Minute numbers 17 - 21
Cllr Whibley presented the minutes of the Licensing & Enforcement Sub
Committee meeting held on 11 March 2020. These were agreed.

(o)

Minutes of Licensing & Enforcement Sub Committee held virtually on
29 July Minute numbers 22 - 27
Cllr Whibley presented the minutes of the Licensing & Enforcement Sub
Committee meeting held virtually on 29 July 2020. These were agreed.

(p)

Minutes of Strategic Planning Committee held on 25 February 2020
Minute numbers 39 - 47
Cllr Ledger presented the minutes of the Strategic Planning Committee meeting
held on 25 February 2020.
It was agreed to consider the recommendation at minute number 46, East Devon
Local Development Scheme, following consideration of the minutes of the
Strategic Planning Committee meeting held virtually on 23 July 2020.

(q)

Minutes of Strategic Planning Committee held virtually on 23 July
2020 Minute numbers 48 - 53
Cllr Ledger presented the minutes of the Strategic Planning Committee meeting
held virtually on 23 July 2020.
Arising from consideration of the minutes, the following minute was called by eight
Councillors:
Minute 53 - Greater Exeter Strategic Plan: draft policies and site options
consultation
Cllr Arnott confirmed that the Council would fulfil its duty to co-operate and noted
that this was the first time that the GESP had been properly discussed at a full
Council meeting.
Cllr Arnott proposed that the minutes of the Strategic Planning Committee meeting
held virtually on 23 July 2020 be agreed. This was seconded by Cllr Rylance.
Cllr Ingham advised that the lack of infrastructure was due to a lack of cooperation previously. The Government would force authorities to work together
and Cllr Ingham expressed concern that this would leave Devon vulnerable to a
unitary authority being imposed.
Cllr Moulding noted that GESP was not a proposal at this stage, but rather a list of
sites put forward following the call for sites. Cllr Moulding stressed the need to
work together and was concerned that leaving GESP would be a lost opportunity.

page 9

Council 20 August 2020

Cllr Dent was concerned to note that there had been little or no member input at
GESP meetings and advised that it would be a mistake to reject GESP until a
public consultation had been held.
Cllr de Saram noted that the public had the opportunity to comment on the draft
Plan and expressed concern that halting the process would send a signal that the
Council could not co-operate on planning matters.
Cllr Parr questioned what were the new plans for co-operation across boundaries
and asked how the Council would control development. Cllr Parr was concerned
that development would be in the wrong place with no supporting infrastructure.
Cllr Skinner was of the view that housing numbers would increase anyway and
that the lack of infrastructure funding would be the biggest threat. GESP would
offer a measure of protection.
Cllr Skinner proposed that a recorded vote be held.
Cllr Hall expressed the view that partnership working was a key issue and that the
electorate should be consulted.
Cllr Davey advised that a constituent had contacted him to request that the vote
be recorded.
Cllr Davey seconded the proposal for a recorded vote and this was agreed.
Recorded vote:
Councillors Megan Armstrong, Paul Arnott, Jess Bailey, Denise Bickley, Kevin
Blakey, Kim Bloxham, Sarah Chamberlain, Andrew Colman, Olly Davey, Cathy
Gardner, Sam Hawkins, Paul Hayward, Nick Hookway, Sarah Jackson, Luke
Jeffery, Vicky Johns, Geoff Jung, Fabian King, Dan Ledger, John Loudoun, Dawn
Manley, Tony McCollum, Cathy McLauchlan, Paul Millar, Geoff Pratt, Val Ranger,
Marianne Rixson, Jack Rowland, Eleanor Rylance, Brenda Taylor, Joe Whibley,
Tony Woodward and Eileen Wragg – voted for – 33
Councillors Dean Barrow, Susie Bond, Colin Brown, Fred Caygill, Maddy
Chapman, Iain Chubb, Alan Dent, Bruce de Saram, Peter Faithful, Ian Hall, Mike
Howe, Stuart Hughes, Ben Ingham, Paul Jarvis, David Key, Andrew Moulding,
Helen Parr, Geoff Pook, Philip Skinner, Ian Thomas, Chris Wright and Tom Wright
– voted against – 22
Councillor Steve Gazzard – abstained – 1
Cllr Thomas requested that minutes record his disappointment at not being
allowed to speak in the debate.
RESOLVED:
That Council:
 Notifies our district partners that we are withdrawing from the GESP;
 In that letter offers assurance that we will fulfil our duty to co-operate in an
ongoing and positive partnership;
 Immediately begins the process to renew our Local Plan and that the

page 10

Council 20 August 2020
Strategic Planning Committee meets as soon as possible to explore and
define the processes involved
And that the proposed new Local Development Scheme be referred back to the
Strategic Planning Committee for further consideration following the decision to
withdraw from the GESP [minute 46 of Strategic Planning Committee meeting of
25 February 2020 refers].

87

Makeup of Panels, Forums, Joint Bodies and Outside Bodies - A
report from the Monitoring Officer
Members were asked to consider a report by the Monitoring Officer and to agree
appointments to Panels, Forums, Joint Bodies and Outside Bodies. The Chair invited the
Monitoring Officer, Henry Gordon Lennox to present the report. It was noted that this would
complete the business normally conducted at the annual meeting of the Council.
1. Makeup of Panels, Forums and Joint Bodies
RESOLVED:
That the makeup of Panels, Forums and Joint Bodies as set out in Appendix 1 be agreed.
2. Representatives on the Panels, Forums and Joint Bodies
Members were then asked to vote on those nominations to Panels, Forums and Joint Bodies
where more nominations had been made than spaces were available.
Nominations for appointments to Panels, Forums and Joint Bodies 2020/21 were voted on
and agreed.
RESOLVED:
That the representatives on the Panels, Forums and Joint Bodies 2020 / 21 shall be as
follows:
Panels and Forums

Composition 2020/21

Appointments

Asset Management Forum

Portfolio Holders:
Economy & Assets (Chair)
Finance
Strategic Planning

Portfolio Holders:
Economy & Assets (Chair)
Finance
Strategic Planning

Assistant Portfolio Holders:
Economy & Assets
Finance
Strategic Planning

Assistant Portfolio Holders:
Economy & Assets
Finance
Strategic Planning

ex officio:
Leader

ex officio:
Leader

(Three Cabinet Members,
three Assistant Portfolio
Holders and one ex officio
Councillor)

page 11

Council 20 August 2020
Community Grant Panel
(One Cabinet Member and
six Councillors)

Community Infrastructure
Levy (CiL) Working Group
(Three Cabinet Members,
Vice Chair of Strategic
Planning Committee, Chair
& Vice Chair of Planning
Committee and four
Councillors)

Budget Setting and Capital
Allocations Panel
(The Cabinet, Assistant
Portfolio Holders plus five
Councillors)

Portfolio Holder:
Finance (Chair)

Portfolio Holder:
Finance (Chair)

Cllrs:
Six

Jess Bailey
David Key
John Loudoun
Paul Millar
Helen Parr
Geoff Pook

Portfolio Holders:
Strategic Planning
Economy & Assets
Sustainable Homes &
Communities

Portfolio Holders:
Strategic Planning
Economy & Assets
Sustainable Homes &
Communities

Strategic Planning
Committee:
Vice Chair (Chair)

Strategic Planning
Committee:
Vice Chair (Chair)

Planning Committee:
Chair
Vice Chair

Planning Committee:
Chair
Vice Chair

Cllrs:
Four

Mike Howe
Geoff Pook
Nick Hookway
Phil Skinner

Leader

Leader

Portfolio Holders:
Climate Action
Coast, Country &
Environment
Corporate Services &
COVID-19 Response and
Recovery
Democracy and
Transparency
Economy & Assets
Finance (Chair)
Policy Co-ordination &
Regional Engagement
Strategic Planning
Sustainable Homes &
Communities

Portfolio Holders:
Climate Action
Coast, Country &
Environment
Corporate Services &
COVID-19 Response and
Recovery
Democracy and
Transparency
Economy & Assets
Finance (Chair)
Policy Co-ordination &
Regional Engagement
Strategic Planning
Sustainable Homes &
Communities

Assistant Portfolio Holders:
Climate Action
Coast, County and
Environment
Democracy & Transparency
Economy and Assets
Finance

Assistant Portfolio Holders:
Climate Action
Coast, County and
Environment
Democracy & Transparency
Economy and Assets
Finance

page 12

Council 20 August 2020

Cllrs:
Five

Dean Barrow
Kevin Blakey
Kathy McLauchlan
Andrew Moulding
Geoff Pook

Portfolio Holder:
Democracy & Transparency
(Chair)
Corporate Services and
COVID-19 Response and
Recovery
Policy Co-ordination &
Regional Engagement

Portfolio Holder:
Democracy & Transparency
(Chair)
Corporate Services and
COVID-19 Response and
Recovery
Policy Co-ordination &
Regional Engagement

Assistant Portfolio Holder:
Democracy & Transparency

Assistant Portfolio Holder:
Democracy & Transparency

Cllrs:
Five

Susie Bond
Maddy Chapman
Alan Dent
Sam Hawkins
Luke Jeffery

Joint Bodies

EDDC Appointees

Appointments to be made
at the Council meeting

Arts and Culture Forum

Portfolio Holder:
Coast, County &
Environment

Portfolio Holder:
Coast, Country &
Environment

Assistant Portfolio Holders:
Coast, Country &
Environment
Democracy & Transparency

Assistant Portfolio Holders:
Coast, Country &
Environment
Democracy & Transparency

Cllrs:
Four (Chair)

Olly Davey
Bruce De Saram
Andrew Moulding
Joe Whibley (Chair)

Member Development
Working Party
(Three Cabinet Members,
One Assistant Portfolio
Holder and five
Councillors)

(One Cabinet Member, Two
Assistant Portfolio Holders
and four Councillors)

County Committees
including:
East Devon Highways and
Traffic Orders Committee

(plus 2 Community & 7 town
representatives)
Cllrs:
Three

Paul Hayward
Mike Howe
Val Ranger

(Three Councillors)
Cranbrook Strategic
Delivery Board

Portfolio Holder:
Strategic Planning

Portfolio Holder:
Strategic Planning

(One Cabinet Member and

Ward Member:

Kim Bloxham

page 13

Council 20 August 2020
one Ward Member)

Cranbrook x 1

East Devon Traveller
Forum
(One Cabinet Member, One
Ward Member and one
Councillor)

Portfolio Holder:
Sustainable Homes and
Communities (Chair)

Portfolio Holder:
Sustainable Homes and
Communities (Chair)

Ward Member:
Cranbrook x 1

Kim Bloxham

Cllr:
One
Cllrs:
One

Kathy McLauchlan

Portfolio Holder:
Leader

Portfolio Holder:
Leader

Leader

Leader

(substitute: Deputy Leader)

(substitute: Deputy Leader)

Exmouth Queens Drive
Delivery Group

Leader (Chair)
Deputy Leader (Vice Chair)

Leader (Chair)
Deputy Leader (Vice Chair)

(Four Cabinet Members
and seven Ward Members)

Portfolio Holders:
Economy & Assets
Strategic Planning

Portfolio Holders:
Economy & Assets
Strategic Planning

Ward Members:
Exmouth Brixington x1
Exmouth Halsdon x 1
Exmouth Littleham x 2
Exmouth Town x 2
Exmouth Withycombe
Raleigh x 1

Megan Armstrong (Halsdon)
Andrew Colman (Brixington)
Olly Davey (Town)
Nick Hookway (Littleham)
Brenda Taylor (Withycombe)
Joe Whibley (Town)
Chris Wright (Littleham)

Leader
Deputy Leader

Leader
Deputy Leader

Cllrs:
Two

Denise Bickley
Fabian King

Leader

Leader

East and Mid Devon
Community Safety
Partnership

Steve Gazzard

(One Councillor)
Exeter and East Devon
Enterprise Zone Board
(One Cabinet Member)
Exeter and Heart of Devon
Growth Board
(One Cabinet Member)

Heart of the South -West
Joint Committee
(Two Cabinet Members)
LED Leisure Management
Ltd
(Two Councillors)
Local Joint Panel

page 14

Council 20 August 2020
(Four Cabinet Members
and two Councillors)

Lower Exe Mooring
Authority Management
Committee

Portfolio Holders:
Corporate Services &
COVID-19 Response and
Recovery
Finance
Policy Co-ordination &
Regional Engagement

Portfolio Holders:
Corporate Services &
COVID-19 Response and
Recovery
Finance
Policy Co-ordination &
Regional Engagement

Cllrs:
Two

John Loudoun
Phil Twiss

Cllrs:
Two

Fred Caygill
Brenda Taylor

(plus substitute)

Sub: Bruce De Saram

Portfolio Holder:
Coast, Country &
Environment (Chair)
Climate Action

Portfolio Holder:
Coast, Country &
Environment (Chair)
Climate Action

Assistant Portfolio Holders:
Coast, Country &
Environment
Climate Action

Assistant Portfolio Holders:
Coast, Country &
Environment
Climate Action

Cllrs:
Two

Geoff Pook
Tom Wright

Portfolio Holder:
Coast, Country &
Environment (Chair)
Climate Action

Portfolio Holder:
Coast, Country &
Environment (Chair)
Climate Action

Assistant Portfolio Holder:
Coast, Country &
Environment
Climate Action

Assistant Portfolio Holder:
Coast, Country &
Environment
Climate Action
Denise Bickley (Town)
Cathy Gardner (Town)
John Loudoun (Rural)
Stuart Hughes (Sidford)

(Two Councillors)
Recycling and Waste
Partnership Board
(Two Cabinet Members,
two Assistant Portfolio
Holders and two
Councillors)

Sidmouth Beach
Management Plan Steering
Group
(Two Cabinet Members,
two Assistant Portfolio
Holders and four Sidmouth
Ward Members)

Ward Members:
Sidmouth Town Ward
Members
Sidmouth Rural
Sidmouth Sidford x 1
Sidmouth Port Royal
Project Reference Group

Cllrs:
Two (representing Sidmouth
Wards)

Cathy Gardner
Stuart Hughes

Portfolio Holder:

Portfolio Holder:

(Two Councillors
representing the Sidmouth
Wards)
South East Devon Habitat

page 15

Council 20 August 2020
Regulations Executive
Committee

Coast, Country &
Environment

Coast, Country &
Environment

(One Cabinet Member)

(substitute – Vice Chair of
Strategic Planning
Committee)
Leader

(substitute – Vice Chair of
Strategic Planning
Committee)
Leader

Chief Executive

Chief Executive

(substitute: Portfolio Holder:
Corporate Services &
COVID-19 Response and
Recovery)
Cllrs:

(substitute: Portfolio Holder:
Corporate Services &
COVID-19 Response and
Recovery)
Nick Hookway
Fabian King
Phil Twiss

STRATA Joint Executive
Committee
(EDDC, Exeter City and
Teignbridge authorities)
(One Cabinet Member and
CEO)
STRATA Joint Scrutiny
Committee
(EDDC, Exeter City and
Teignbridge authorities)

Three

(Three Councillors)

(substitutes: three
Councillors)

(Subs: Eleanor Rylance,
Denise Bickley & Chris
Pepper)

Woodbury, Exmouth &
Budleigh (WEB)
Community Health and
Wellbeing Board

Portfolio Holder:

Portfolio Holder:

Sustainable Homes and
Communities

Sustainable Homes and
Communities

(substitute: Ward Member
from Budleigh & Raleigh,
Exmouth or Woodbury &
Lympstone)

Substitute: Tom Wright

(One Cabinet Member)

Designated Persons

Ian Hall
Paul Millar
Jack Rowland

3.Representatives on the Outside Bodies
Members were then asked to vote on those nominations to the Outside Bodies where more
nominations had been made than spaces were available.
Nominations for appointments to the Outside Bodies 2020/21 were voted on and agreed.
RESOLVED:
That the representatives on the Outside Bodies 2020 / 21 shall be as follows:

page 16

Council 20 August 2020

Name of Outside
Body

Appointments
2020/21

Portfolio
Holders/Leadreporting link

APPOINTMENTS:
GENERAL
Blackdown Hills (AONB)
Joint Advisory Committee

Paul Hayward

Coast, Country &
Environment

Devon and Exeter Area
Rail Working Party

Bruce De Saram
Joe Whibley

Economy & Assets

Devon Authorities
Strategic Waste
Committee

Coast, Country &
Environment Portfolio
Holder

Coast, Country &
Environment

Substitute:
Assistant Portfolio Holder
Climate Action
SPACE (formerly Devon
Youth Service)

Vicky Johns

Sustainable Homes &
Communities

East Devon AONB
Partnership

Geoff Pratt
Marianne Rixson

Coast, Country &
Environment

East Devon Citizens’
Advice Bureau

Maddy Chapman
Tony Woodward

Sustainable Homes &
Communities

East Devon Transport,
Tony McCollum
Research and
Information Project (TRIP)
Working
Party/Management Group

Sustainable Homes &
Communities

Action East Devon
(formerly East Devon
Volunteer Support
Agency)

Megan Armstrong
Tony McCollum

Sustainable Homes &
Communities

Exe Estuary Management
Group

Nick Hookway

Coast, Country &
Environment

Substitute:
Geoff Jung
Exeter International
Airport Consultative
Group

Economy & Assets
Portfolio Holder

page 17

Economy & Assets /
Coast, Country &
Environment

Council 20 August 2020

Exeter Science Park
Board of Directors:
Exeter Science Park –
Shareholder
representative

Economy & Assets
Portfolio Holder
(Director)
Finance Portfolio Holder
(Shareholder rep)

Finance / Economy &
Assets / Strategic
Planning

Queens Drive Exmouth
Community Interest
Company

Sam Hawkins
Paul Millar

Finance / Economy &
Assets / Strategic
Planning

Greater Exeter Strategic
Sports Board

Economy & Assets
Portfolio Holder
(substitute Sustainable
Homes & Communities
Portfolio Holder)

Economy & Assets /
Sustainable Housing &
Communities

Local Government
Association General
Assembly

Leader*
(substitute:
Deputy Leader)

Council

*Leader is SW
representative on district
councillor network
executive
Local Government
Association Annual Rural
Assembly

Leader (with vote)
Deputy Leader (who can
vote in the absence of
Leader)

Council

Police and Crime Panel –
Devon and Cornwall

John Loudoun

Council

Substitute:
Ian Hall

SWAP (South West Audit
Partnership Ltd)

Audit & Governance
Chairman (Shareholder)
Section 151 Officer
(Director)

Finance

South West Councils including Employers’
Panel

Leader

Council

SPARSE – Rural Special
Interest Group

Leader

Deputy: Portfolio Holder –
Corporate Services and
COVID-19 Response &
Recovery
Council

page 18

Council 20 August 2020

Substitute:
Economy & Assets
Portfolio Holder
Sport England Local
Delivery Plan Programme
Group

88

Economy & Assets
Portfolio Holder

Economy & Assets

Temporary Rules of Procedure (COVID-19) - A report from the
Monitoring Officer
The Monitoring Officer had produced a report regarding governing the nature of business
that the Council would expect to deal with during the coronavirus pandemic and how such
meetings, as and when they occur, should be conducted.
RESOLVED:
That the Council continues to use the Temporary Rules of Procedure (COVID-19) until 7
May 2021.

89

For Members to agree the meeting programme for the remainder of
the Civic Year
RESOLVED:
That the meeting programme for the remainder of the Civic Year be agreed.

90

Motion: Support for Women Against State Pension Inequality
(WASPI) impacted upon by Covid-19
The following motion was proposed by Councillor Fabian King, seconded by Councillor Val
Ranger and supported by Councillors Paul Millar, Eleanor Rylance, Jack Rowland, Paul
Arnott, Paul Hayward, Denise Bickley, Marianne Rixson, Eileen Wragg, Olly Davey, Luke
Jeffery and Joe Whibley.
A. East Devon District Council supports the WASPI call on Government to take urgent
action to support 1950-s born women affected by the coronavirus outbreak to:
1. Give WASPI women who would be otherwise eligible early access to Pension
Credit
2. Give WASPI women due to reach State Pension age this financial year early
access to their State Pension
B. The Leader of the Council should formally write an open letter to all our 3 MPs urging
them to take up the above matter and promote it in Government. Also that this
Council should provide maximum publicity about this letter.

page 19

Council 20 August 2020
The proposer of the motion, Cllr King, highlighted the devastating repercussions on this
group of women resulting from the coronavirus pandemic which had removed their means of
earning or saving money.
Cllr Ranger seconded the motion.
The Chairman invite those present to vote and the motion was carried.
RESOLVED:
A. That East Devon District Council supports the WASPI call on Government to take
urgent action to support 1950-s born women affected by the coronavirus outbreak to:
1. Give WASPI women who would be otherwise eligible early access to Pension
Credit
2. Give WASPI women due to reach State Pension age this financial year early
access to their State Pension
B. The Leader of the Council should formally write an open letter to all our 3 MPs urging
them to take up the above matter and promote it in Government. Also that this
Council should provide maximum publicity about this letter.

91

Motion: Celebrating Pride in East Devon
The following motion was proposed by Councillor Luke Jeffery, seconded by Councillor Joe
Whibley and supported by Councillors Denise Bickley, Dan Ledger, Paul Millar, Paul Arnott,
Eleanor Rylance and Tony Woodward.
This Council notes with concern that across Devon the number of hate crimes against
people on the basis of the sexual orientation rose by 9.6% and against transgender people
hate crimes rose by 26.5% 2018-19 (Source: FOI request made to Devon and Cornwall
Police by Cllr Jeffery). This Council also recognises the contribution made by LGBT+
citizens to East Devon and beyond. As a statement of solidarity with our LGBT+ community
in East Devon, this Council resolves to:
 Fly the pride flag outside of Blackdown House throughout Pride Month (June) every
year and on the same day as any pride events taking place within the district
 Engage with local LGBT+ charities and advocacy groups to determine how East
Devon District Council could better support our LGBT+ community.
Cllr Jeffery outlined the background to the motion and his reasons for proposing it to Council.
Cllr Whibley seconded the motion.
The Chairman invited those present to vote and the motion was carried.
RESOLVED:
That this Council notes with concern that across Devon the number of hate crimes against
people on the basis of the sexual orientation rose by 9.6% and against transgender people
hate crimes rose by 26.5% 2018-19 (Source: FOI request made to Devon and Cornwall
Police by Cllr Jeffery). This Council also recognises the contribution made by LGBT+
citizens to East Devon and beyond. As a statement of solidarity with our LGBT+ community
in East Devon, this Council resolves to:

page 20

Council 20 August 2020



92

Fly the pride flag outside of Blackdown House throughout Pride Month (June) every
year and on the same day as any pride events taking place within the district
Engage with local LGBT+ charities and advocacy groups to determine how East
Devon District Council could better support our LGBT+ community.

Motion: Tackling Bi-Phobia
The following motion was proposed by Councillor Luke Jeffery, seconded by Councillor Joe
Whibley and supported by Councillors Denise Bickley, Dan Ledger, Paul Millar, Paul Arnott,
Eleanor Rylance and Tony Woodward.
In addition to the measures proposed to be taken by the Council to show solidarity with the
LGBT+ community at large, the Council notes the specific challenges faced by the bisexual
community. 45% of those who identify as bisexual experience mental health problems
(compared with 25% in the wider population) and are regularly subjected to specific abuse
over promiscuity or confusion over their sexuality, at times even from other members of the
LGBT+ community.
As a statement of solidarity with our bisexual community in East Devon this Council resolves
to ensure:
 That any equalities training includes specific information relevant to bisexuality
 That this Council flies the bisexual flag outside of Blackdown House to mark Bi
Visibility Day on 23rd September every year
Cllr Jeffery outlined the reasons for the motion which was seconded by Cllr Whibley.
The Chairman invited those present to vote and the motion was carried.

RESOLVED:
That in addition to the measures proposed to be taken by the Council to show solidarity with
the LGBT+ community at large, the Council notes the specific challenges faced by the
bisexual community. 45% of those who identify as bisexual experience mental health
problems (compared with 25% in the wider population) and are regularly subjected to
specific abuse over promiscuity or confusion over their sexuality, at times even from other
members of the LGBT+ community.
As a statement of solidarity with our bisexual community in East Devon this Council resolves
to ensure:
 That any equalities training includes specific information relevant to bisexuality
 That this Council flies the bisexual flag outside of Blackdown House to mark Bi
Visibility Day on 23rd September every year

page 21

Council 20 August 2020

Attendance List
Councillors present:
V Ranger (Vice-Chairman)
M Armstrong
P Jarvis
S Jackson
S Chamberlain
P Arnott
K Blakey
K Bloxham
F King
F Caygill
A Colman
P Millar
T Woodward
N Hookway
C Wright
O Davey
J Whibley
L Jeffery
T McCollum

V Johns
D Ledger
J Rowland
J Loudoun
D Bickley
J Bailey
K McLauchlan
P Hayward
S Hawkins
A Moulding
D Key
C Gardner (Chair)
S Bond
D Manley
C Brown
M Chapman
I Chubb
A Dent
D Barrow

P Faithfull
S Gazzard
I Hall
M Howe
B Ingham
G Jung
H Parr
G Pook
G Pratt
M Rixson
E Rylance
B De Saram
P Skinner
B Taylor
I Thomas
E Wragg
T Wright
S Hughes

Officers in attendance:
Mark Williams, Chief Executive
Henry Gordon Lennox, Strategic Lead Governance and Licensing, Monitoring Officer
Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment
Ed Freeman, Service Lead Strategic Planning and Development Management
Shirley Shaw, Planning Barrister
Amanda Coombes, Democratic Services Officer
Debbie Meakin, Democratic Services Officer
Sarah Jenkins, Democratic Services Officer

Councillor apologies:
M Allen
M Hartnell
P Twiss

Chairman

Date:

page 22

Agenda Item 8
Meeting on 21st October 2020
Agenda Item No 8
Questions by Members to Full Council under Procedure rule 9.2
Question 1: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Portfolio Holder for Economy and
Assets from Councillor Ben Ingham
About 80% of businesses nationally have reported a fall in business volumes and 40% have
reduced employment. Job vacancies have fallen to half their previous level. If the
accommodation and food sectors are permanently scarred, what help can the Council
organise for young people?
Answer:
The latest data indicates that the claimant count for 16-24 year olds in the District increased
from 190 in September 2019 to 715 in August 2020 before declining to 660 in September
2020.
The national Kickstart programme is specifically aimed at supporting young people (16-24
years olds) in to employment. As well as reviewing the potential to offer placements within
the Council we will ensure that any East Devon businesses that are able to offer placements
are provided with the right gateway support in: helping employers shaping Kickstart compliant
placements; bidding to the DWP on their behalf; ensuring work coaches share details of the
best candidates; ensuring prompt payment of the placement’s wages; making sure the best
wrap around support is provided to that young placement to maximise their changes of
employment at the end of the 6 months.
More widely we will continue to work with partners such as the DWP, City and County
Councils and local skills and training providers to support young people in the District. This
includes through sector specific programmes (such as Building Greater Exeter), negotiating
Employment and Skills plans with regard to major employment developments and supporting
proposals such as the forthcoming Future Skills Centre at the former Flybe Training
Academy.
Specifically in relation to the local food and drink sector we are extending the offer of support
to Town Councils that want to lead and deliver Gate to Plate type events in 2021 (subject to
Covid-19 safety requirements). There is also evidence that visitor demand for
accommodation along with associated local retail spend has picked up strongly across East
Devon in recent months. A significant proportion of accommodation providers received grant
funding through the various programmes that have been deployed since the lockdown period
and in the longer term we expect to see growing resilience in the sector.

Question 2: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Portfolio Holder for Economy and
Assets from Councillor Ben Ingham
In East Devon higher numbers of over 50s than under 25s have registered for unemployment
benefits. Bearing in mind the past recessions have seen only one in three older workers
return to employment, can the Council tell us what it has been doing to reduce this loss to the
economy? Has Economic Development discussed any special measures for this group with
partners?
page 23

Answer:
The latest data indicates the claimant count for the 50+ age bracket in the District has
increased from 295 people in September 2019 to 920 in September 2020. Much like for 1624 year olds, there is evidence that the over 50s age group is being disproportionately
impacted by the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic.
This trend has been discussed with Job Centre Plus colleagues in the locality. They operate
a programme called Skillsmax which is focussed on digital inclusion and access to
employment. This scheme is specifically aimed at 50+ customers and we’ll be promoting this
via our resident and business newsletters.
In addition to this we have also developed a Redundancy Response Network. Initially this
was in response to large scale redundancies at Axminster Carpets and then Flybe. Latterly
we have worked with DWP and the County Council to advise on the development of a County
wide network. This network will help to ensure that relevant partners can quickly come
together to provide a full package of support for all age ranges including the over 50s.
Finally our business support programme ‘Adapt and Thrive’ is open to residents of any age.
This will help to support people into self-employment or to develop existing businesses.
We will continue to keep the efficacy of these measures under review. This will help to
determine whether further local/community based initiatives are required to help support
people from this age group back in to employment.

Question 3: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Portfolio Holder for Economy and
Assets from Councillor Bruce De Saram
Has our EDDC economic team been able to evaluate the success of "eat out to help out" in
the food and hospitality sectors and from this data are they aware of how many businesses
will survive to the next season and are there any more steps we could take as a Council to
support this sector other than by the use of Grants?
Answer:
Following the closure of the foodservice sector in March, approximately 80% of hospitality
firms nationally stopped trading in April and 1.4 million workers were furloughed, the highest
of any sector. The ‘Eat Out to Help Out’ scheme was launched in August in an attempt to
boost recovery. Data shows that during the third week of August 2020, the number of
customers at restaurants Mon-Weds was up 61% compared to the same days in 2019.
HMRC will publish Official Statistics covering the ‘Eat Out to Help Out’ Scheme on Thursday
22 October at 9:30am. We have not undertaken any specific East Devon analysis yet but
nationally the scheme has been successful with over £832 million spent by customers and
over 53.7 million trips made. Government pay out so far has reached £522 million, with over
130 million claims made.
Given the lack of local data currently no formal evaluation has been undertaken of the impact
of the ‘Eat Out to Help Out’ initiative in the District as yet. In any event such an evaluation
would be unlikely to give an accurate indication of predicted survival rates into next year. To
quote the NFU: “As local lockdowns become more frequent, the furlough scheme ends and

page 24

national guidelines tighten, only time will tell as to whether the ‘Eat Out to Help Out’ scheme
has done enough for businesses to survive such unprecedented and difficult times.”
The Council has administered grant schemes that have helped to provide short term financial
support to food and hospitality businesses. Looking forward a good way to support both
sectors is to promote the quality local food and drink/produce across East Devon. To this end
the economic development team are offering support to Town Councils across the district
who want to deliver Gate to Plate events in 2021 to help boost visitor numbers, hospitality
and retail sector trade.

Question 4: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Portfolio Holder for Economy &
Assets from Councillor Andrew Moulding
To what extent has the Council participated in the Team Devon economic recovery planning
process and what specific plans are there for moving further forward with the Recovery Plan
for East Devon?
Answer:
The Council has participated fully in the Team Devon approach including representation at
the Devon Leaders and Chief Executives Group, Recovery Co-ordination Group and the
Business and Economic Recovery Group. A report will be brought to the October 28 th
Cabinet detailing the full range of initiatives that have been deployed to date and the
programme of activity that is planned moving forward to support economic recovery in
District. This is within the context of the Team Devon Covid-19 Economy and Business
Recovery Prospectus that was published in July.
Question 5: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Portfolio Holder for Economy &
Assets from Councillor Andrew Moulding
How is the construction sector recovering from the pandemic and how has this affected
housing delivery? How is first-time mortgage finance likely to affect delivery?
Answer:
There is evidence that large commercial and residential construction sites in the District were
interrupted by the pandemic. All activity has now resumed albeit that this has also required
adapting to new working practices. This pattern is reflected at the national level where the
construction sector rebounded more than other sectors in the period June to August albeit
that output is still down by 10% for the year. Figures from the Planning Portal also following
a similar trend with the number of planning applications submitted in April and May being
below the equivalent figures for 2019 but with a sharp increase in June – August.
In terms of the impact on housing delivery in the District the best data source currently is from
Building Control and the relevant figures are set out in the table below. Major house builders
have reported strong reservation levels but it is not currently possible to say what effect the
availability of first time mortgage finance is having on housing delivery.

Building Control Completions 2020
Jan
Feb
Mar
No. of
homes
17
71
80

Apr

May

June

July

Aug

Sep

4

12

55

43

59

65

page 25

Question 6: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Portfolio Holder for Economy &
Assets from Councillor Andrew Moulding
Congratulations to Libby Jarrett, Andrew Wood and their teams for their efforts in sustaining
local businesses – and for carrying out numerous post assurance fraud checks. Can we have
an update please – and inform us on what gaps in financial support have been observed?
Answer:
A wide range of initiatives have been promoted nationally to mitigate the impact of the
pandemic. Some of these, such as the Coronavirus Job Retention and Business Interruption
Loan Schemes, have been deployed entirely independently of local authorities. Others have
required the Council to play a leading or partnership role. Further activity has been instigated
locally to respond to specific circumstances, most particularly where large scale
redundancies has been announced. The full breadth of activity undertaken over the last 6
months is set out below;
Redundancy response – early experience with Axminster Carpets enabled a redundancy
response network to be developed in East Devon such that redundancy response events can
be delivered without delay. We are now working with the Department for Work and Pension
(DWP) alongside regional and local partners such as training providers and the Citizens
Advice Bureau to advise on the development and co-ordination of an effective county wide
redundancy response network.
Business grants – three grants schemes haven been administered through the Council as
follows;


Small Business Grants Fund (SBGF) scheme



Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Business Grants Fund (RHLGF)



Discretionary Grant Scheme

In total over £45m has been deployed to over 4,500 individual businesses and organisations
with grants ranging from £1,000 to £25,000.
Rate relief – over £19m of business rate relief has been given to retail, hospitality and leisure
businesses and nurseries in the District.
Hardship funding – The Council is also able to support individuals through the Council’s
COVID Hardship Fund Policy where we have funds available of £192,100. So far we have
paid out over £32K with 164 awards made. Most of this funding to date has been used to
provide immediate emergency short term support where people are struggling to meet their
essential needs. However one of the main aims of this policy is to support our residents in
building financial resilience and going forward we will be looking to use this fund to also help
with addressing wider support needs; such as business advice and support for the selfemployed.
Business support programme – a series of online workshops and webinars were
commissioned through Cosmic to provide additional support to businesses during May and
June. Topics covered included new ways to sell online, digital marketing and the use of
social media platforms. Over 150 people took part in these events.
Business Ambassador - an ambassador programme is being instigated with some of the
largest and most significant employers in the District acting as champions for East Devon.
The programme will facilitate inward investment opportunities and will act as a platform for
exchange of ideas and opportunities, sharing best practices, promoting local supply chains
and East Devon more generally as a great place to do business. It is part of a Devon-wide
approach to inward investment and business engagement within the Devon Delivers
page 26

programme. A qualitative survey was undertaken in July and August to provide further insight
in to the issues and challenges facing the business community and to help inform recovery
planning.
Communications – a dedicated weekly business newsletter was introduced in March.
Important updates were sent by email every week and supported by video/images/text on
social media, advertising on social media and website. The email update was issued as a
timely response to Covid-19 lockdown, business grants and support, the gradual opening up
of the economy and the many changes that businesses have needed to respond to. The
number of recipients grew from 9,300 to 10,800 over the period to July. . Since this point
updates for businesses have been included in the fortnightly Residents update. A further
business update is scheduled for October.
In terms of gaps in financial support the ineligibility of home workers/those without high fixed
property costs was a particularly issue in terms of the deployment of the grant schemes.
Nationally the ExcludedUK group has been formed to raise awareness of the 3 million UK
taxpayers who are not eligible for UK Government Covid-19 support. The following are cited
as examples in this respect;


Newly self-employed



Those earning less than 50% income from self-employment



Self-employed with +£50k trading profits



PAYE freelancers



New starters



Those made redundant before 19 Mar



Those denied furlough



Directors paid PAYE Annually



Directors paid in Dividends



Directors of Companies not in Profit



New Businesses



Businesses ineligible for Business Grants



Those in maternity/parental/adoption leave



Those whose personal circumstances have affected entitlement to support eg.
pensions, bereavement allowance, carer's allowance, students

Question 7: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Portfolio Holder for Finance from
Councillor Ben Ingham
How many local businesses do you anticipate will close this winter?
Answer:
It is very hard to predict with any great certainty as to how many business closures there will
be this winter. One source of recent insight for the tourism sector was provided by the
COVID-19 Business Impact Survey for the month of August 2020 undertaken by The South
page 27

West Research Company Ltd. during September 2020. 144 Devon businesses in Devon
responded to the survey. This found that 39% of businesses were doubtful about surviving
the coming months including 9% who said without further/better assistance their business will
not survive.
The outlook for the winter period is challenging and we can expect rises in unemployment,
more business closures and ongoing challenges for the local economy. We continue to
keep the business closure rate under careful review including the need for any associated
redundancy support.

Question 8: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Portfolio Holder for Finance from
Councillor Ben Ingham
What are the findings from the Business engagement survey – identifying successful
adaptations and sharing best practice?
Answer:
Members of the economic development team have undertaken a survey of 23 leading local
businesses in order to provide a qualitative assessment of the impact of the Covid-19
pandemic. The findings highlight that support is required for small businesses as a key
element of economic recovery. There was a consensus that East Devon has a unique
opportunity to benefit from increased visitor numbers and inward investment. There was
support for some form of business ambassador programme with businesses acting as
champions for the area, exchanging of ideas and opportunities, sharing best practice,
promoting East Devon and local supply chains.
The survey found that the importance of digital infrastructure and local supply networks had
been highlighted by the pandemic. It was felt the District is well placed to take the lead in the
clean growth agenda and businesses operating in that field should be supported.
In terms of sharing best practice the business newsletter sought to showcases examples of
where businesses had successfully adapted to the changed circumstances in relation to the
pandemic. The full list is available here https://eastdevon.gov.uk/business-andinvestment/business-and-investment-information/coronavirus-business-case-studies/.

Question 9: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Portfolio Holder for Coast Country
and Environment from Councillor Ben Ingham
StreetScene has performed exceptionally well during the Pandemic and the workforce has
been exposed more than most to the risks of infection. How many if any workers, direct or
contractors, have been infected by Coronovirus-19?
Answer:
In the early part of the pandemic, during lockdown we had 41 instances of self-isolation with
COVID symptoms, out of 105 StreetScene operations staff. This was between early March
and June and prior to widespread testing. We believe most of these were due to COVID like
symptoms and not actual COVID, but we can’t be sure.
Our Recycling & Waste Contractors Suez experienced a similar picture, with many cases of
self-isolation prior to testing. Now testing is in place, those with suspected symptoms get
tested quickly and have been able to return to work.

page 28

To our knowledge, we had no confirmed cases of COVID amongst our operations staff or
Suez staff. However, on 16th October one of the REACT team tested positive for COVID
which was contracted on his coastguard work and since he isolated as soon as he found out,
there is no onward impact to the Teams.
We are continuing with COVID secure risk assessment measures to protect our teams as far
as practical.
Question 10: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Portfolio Holder for Economy and
Assets from Councillor Philip Skinner
What steps has the economy portfolio holder taken in personally engaging with the business
community across the district to measure how we as a council can help in maintaining jobs
going forward and could he assure us that he, as lead for EDDC’s economy is promoting
East Devon as a place to do business which in turn can play its part in instilling confidence at
a time when businesses have never needed it more, to insure we can at the very least
maintain our employment levels moving forward and would he agree with me that the private
sector need to be viewed as our partners in investing in East Devon so as we can try to
enhance job growth in whatever way we can as a council.
On that note, may I ask how many businesses have you been able to contact to measure
these aspirations?
Answer:
Launched in March, our monthly C-19 related business updates are shared with more than
11,500 East Devon businesses and residents. This is the largest distribution network we
have ever had and we’ve received particularly positive feedback on content from employers.
The PFH has had close involvement (including signing off content) and direct input to this
regular series of business updates and provides tailored introductions to each edition. This is
a particularly effective method of engaging with the business community across East Devon.
The PFH has used this communication platform to announce grant funding schemes,
highlight opportunities for advice, guidance and funding, sharing best practice and successful
local business adaptations and to launch our own C-19 business resilience webinars. More
recently, he has been able to update on positive steps towards economic recovery. This
includes celebrating successes such as the 100 new high value jobs associated with Exeter
Aerospace and encouraging businesses to engage with Adapt and Thrive - our newly
launched in house business support programme, helping businesses to innovate and
introduce new ways of working to increase trade.
In terms of PFH led activity to help in maintain jobs in the district, the work of the
Discretionary Grant Panel, chaired by the PFH has been instrumental in maintaining jobs in
the most important and immediate way possible – through the robust and efficient transfer of
unprecedented amounts of public grant funds into the private sector. The member panel
ensured EDDC prioritised support to employers in the worst affected retail, hospitality and
leisure sectors while ensuring full adherence to evolving Government guidance.
The PFH has been engaged with the Growth, Development and Prosperity service planning
process from the earliest stage of development, supporting formation of our work
programme. We have presented and discussed the most pressing areas of emerging work
for both economic development staff and this includes a clear focus on promoting East
Devon as a place to do business. Our current engagement with key employers is part of our
work towards establishing a proactive and less fragmented inward investment network,
supported by a group of key ambassadors for the district. This will help us to target
messages to high value businesses and provide a referral and support service to potential
investors. Previously our approach to inward investment outside of the Enterprise Zone has
page 29

been constructive but largely responsive given limited resource. Having recruited a Senior
EDO at the beginning of the year with specific experience of inward investment promotion,
our work to help reinvigorate Devon Delivers as part of our economic recovery will be
beneficial in helping present a more consistent investment landscape and land new, quality
employers in district.
Question 11: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Leader of the Council from
Councillor Philip Skinner
Could the Leader please confirm the position regarding the Council structure?
There was desire from yourself to want a move to a committee structure one which you were
personally pursuing with some vigour to this change....in fact I would go as far as to say that
you couldn’t move the agenda fast enough but it all seems to have gone from F1 to a ‘snail’s
pace’.
Not wanting to state the blindingly obvious, I wonder if I could ask you, as the leader, to ‘pick
up the pace’ a bit just to ensure your integrity in this matter is not challenged as it did seem
from my experience that it was ‘high priority’ and need of desperate debate.
Could you please inform us to date where we are with this issue?
Answer:
I am happy to confirm for Cllr Skinner that I stated unequivocally in May 2019 how important
a piece of work it was for this council to reform the way it has been governed in the past. This
was in my election leaflet too. Under the Cabinet system as operated hitherto, highly
significant financial, economic, and public policy directions were being made by a very small
number of councillors such as himself even within the 10 out of 60 members on Cabinet.
I was pleased, therefore, when a working party was set up to look at how to change this and
was encouraged at first by an LGA advisor to the project who said we should be in position to
try and make some recommendations by Autumn 2019. Indeed - in order to achieve change
in May 2020 with necessary revisions and consultations in a timely fashion - this was
necessary.
However, from the very earliest meeting I and my colleagues were aware that there was little
genuine appetite on the part of the then Leader, or the Opposition Group, to implement
reforms, and the timetable of work kept slipping. Cllr Skinner will remember this; it is fair to
say he was the most generous contributor on the metric of words-spoken-per-meeting at all
sessions.
Nevertheless, the group was able to resolve to seek counsel from other authorities
elsewhere, and there was no good reason not to have been visiting other councils with
committee/hybrid/cabinet systems in the early winter of 2019/20. This simply did not take
place, and in any case would have been too late for changes in May 2020.
I was elected Leader of the Council at the end of May 2020 in the sad circumstances of the
pandemic, and the visits to councils previously delayed were now not possible at all. It was a
real pity that the opportunity prior to the pandemic had been wasted by opponents of reform.
Nevertheless, the status quo was unacceptable to me, so immediately on election as Leader
I widened the sphere of Cabinet with the appointment of 5 new Assistant Portfolio Holders,
and created the Portfolio Holder for Democracy and Transparency to push on further
immediate actions. As a result, the moribund member champion roles were reviewed and last
month 4 roles for Mental Health, Armed Forces, Sport & Leisure, and Culture were
appointed.

page 30

Therefore, changes to the Council structure are already taking place, guided by the Portfolio
Holder. The introduction of Assistant Portfolio Holders has increased the ability of Councillors
outside of the Cabinet to be involved in executive discussions. In addition, panels, forums,
joint and outside bodies have been reformed to facilitate cross-party collaboration. Portfolio
Teams and Member Champions also feed into the new administration's desire for
constructive cross-party collaboration. There is no evidence that a Shadow Cabinet would
contribute to a collaborative spirit of cross-party working.
Next on the Portfolio Holder's agenda is reviewing the Council's relationship with its outside
bodies to ensure there is transparency, investigating the potential for hybrid meetings, and
bringing forward initiatives to ensure that the Council can be more accountable in its
decision-making.
COVID-19 has changed priorities. Once we return to more normal times, it will be possible for
the Working Party to visit other councils, which are not advised under the current restrictions.
Any change in governance arrangements will need to be made on solid and sound evidence,
not least because a change in the Council structure will have significant short-term
implications on senior staff and Democratic Services; it may lead to a major reorganisation
which would require many constitutional changes.
These challenges would not be insurmountable in normal times, but it would be a burden on
hard-pressed officers during a national emergency in which councils everywhere are
performing duties never previously demanded of them, from administering business grants to
supporting the vulnerable. We have risen to these, but such demands are likely to increase
over what is likely to be an extremely difficult winter for East Devon residents.
Question 12: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Portfolio Holder for Economy and
Assets from Councillor Philip Skinner
Would Cllr Hayward identify any infrastructure schemes that are either being built up or are
indeed coming forward in East Devon and how will they help employment?
Answer:
The most recent infrastructure scheme considered by Cabinet was the enhancement of Long
Lane. An increased budget was agreed to support the delivery of the scheme which will bring
a number of benefits including unlocking the Airpark Enterprise Zone site, enhancing public
transport and cycling connectivity and improving the gateway to the Airport.
The pandemic has reinforced the importance of digital connectivity in the District. Jurassic
Fibre continue to roll out their fibre network to the area between Exmouth and the Airport and
also now to Honiton. We continue to support the Connecting Devon and Somerset
programme to secure improvement for more rural areas.
More widely the Local Plan has an accompanying Infrastructure Delivery Plan which details
various infrastructure improvements required to support the delivery of new development in
the District. This includes in terms of unlocking new employment developments with
feasibility work continuing in relation to Hayne Lane at Honiton for example. We also have
our own capital programme including planned drainage and beach management
improvements. Finally we continue to work with partners such as the Local Enterprise
Partnership to develop a pipeline of investable projects including through the Enterprise Zone
programme.

page 31

Question 13: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Leader of the Council from
Councillor Mike Allen
a. What is the progress on the Refresh of Council Plan in the new “Normal” we face?
Answer:
The new Council plan is still being worked on by Senior Officers, the Leader and senior
members of the administration. At the time of writing, the plan has not yet been finalised but
it will be presented to Cabinet shortly. This will reflect the new priorities for the council and
ambitious plans. It will of course set out the strategic aspirations, aims and objectives of the
Council but it will also recognise the various constraints and restrictions placed on us by the
pandemic and it will embrace the role the East Devon District Council expects to play in
supporting communities to recover as we work towards a return to business as usual.

b. What lessons for the Winter Covid-19 situation have been learned from the multi-agency
workshop and other interactions with Local Resilience Forum (LRF) key partners?
Answer:
We have been working closely with the LRF emergency planning infrastructure, TeamDevon,
the Health Protection Board, voluntary and community groups and a wide range of partners
during the Response and Recovery phases of the pandemic. We recently reported to Cabinet
on our Recovery actions. We recognise the value and effectiveness of multi-agency working
and have been represented on a range of groups established under the LRF umbrella. This
has aided communication, provided alerts and allows for the escalation of requests for
assistance.
Strategic Management Team has used Response and Recovery Issues Logs to coordinate
actions across Council Services and each Service completed action plans under the
framework of our Emergency Plan.
The LRF have undertaken reviews and cascaded information on national reviews with
information posted on Resilience Direct a secure emergency planning portal.

c. Given the wave of infections this autumn include all types of respiratory infection which
may mask Coronovirus-19, how are we supporting voluntary work and especially food
banks with the remaining Corporate Food Funds and the Covid-19 Prompt Action Fund?
Answer:
We are working collaboratively with community and voluntary groups, initially through our
Community Support Hub and more recently through our staff involved in community
engagement and public health matters. WestBank were commissioned by the County Council
to provide support and advice to CVS groups and we have supplemented this through
contact with our officers. Foodbanks have been offered support and we have used some of
the funding available to purchase food parcels for shielding groups, which we have delivered.
Question 14: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Portfolio Holder for Economy and
Assets from Councillor Mike Allen
a. Which East Devon sectors of employment have been hardest hit by Covid-19 and which
are recovering well?

page 32

Answer:
Analysis from the County Council highlights that certain parts of the tourism, hospitality and
retail sectors on which Devon is over-dependent have been especially hard hit, with many
high street shop and restaurant chains announcing closures. Overseas owned branch plant
manufacturing operations have also been vulnerable including the announcement of closure
Gould pumps in Axminster. During lockdown the construction sector was also impacted
heavily, as was the fishing sector due in part to restricted supermarket supply chains and the
closure of the hospitality sector. Uniquely in a Devon context the Airport has also been the
epicentre for over 1,000 jobs losses.
Evidence on consumer spending and more widely has demonstrated that following a sharp
delaine in April – June there was sharp increase in activity in sectors such as tourism and
construction during the summer months, albeit that this by no means compensates entirely
for losses experienced during the lockdown period. The aviation sector in particular is likely to
see a slow recovery and it is currently as to when there will be a return to 2019 passenger
levels at the Airport.
A full report will be presented to Cabinet on the 28th October.
b. How many of East Devon’s employees were furloughed and which sectors still have large
numbers on furlough?
Answer:
The relevant figures are set out below.
Area

Torridge

CJRS
(July)
9,000

CJRS
(Aug)

% of eligible
employees
Furloughed
July 2020

% of eligible
employees
Furloughed
Aug 2020

9,200

35%

36%

North Devon 13,800

14,400

34%

36%

South Hams 11,300

11,700

34%

35%

Teignbridge

19,100

19,900

33%

35%

East Devon

19,100

19,700

33%

34%

Devon
County

105,400

109,900

32%

33%

West Devon

6,400

6,700

30%

32%

England

7,600,900

8,067,700

30%

32%

Mid Devon

10,400

10,900

29%

30%

Exeter

16,500

17,400

28%

30%

We do not have a breakdown for which sectors within the District have large numbers of
furloughed employees. These figures have though been produced nationally (see below)
and provide a guide for the position locally. The top three sectors with highest proportion of
furloughed employees are;

page 33





Accommodation and food services
Arts, entertainment, recreation and other services
Construction

There is no reason to believe that the situation locally would not be similar to this as the
same pattern is reflected in the data for the South West region.

page 34

Source: HMRC CJRS and PAYE Real Time Information data and Inter-Departmental
Business Register

page 35

c. What are the findings from the Business engagement survey – identifying successful
adaptations and sharing best practice?
Answer:
Members of the economic development team have undertaken a survey of 23 leading local
businesses in order to provide a qualitative assessment of the impact of the Covid-19
pandemic. The findings highlight that support is required for small businesses as a key
element of economic recovery. There was a consensus that East Devon has a unique
opportunity to benefit from increased visitor numbers and inward investment. There was
support for some form of business ambassador programme with businesses acting as
champions for the area, exchanging of ideas and opportunities, sharing best practice,
promoting East Devon and local supply chains.
The survey found that the importance of digital infrastructure and local supply networks had
been highlighted by the pandemic. It was felt the District is well placed to take the lead in the
clean growth agenda and businesses operating in that field should be supported.
In terms of sharing best practice the business newsletter sought to showcases examples of
where businesses had successfully adapted to the changed circumstances in relation to the
pandemic. The full list is available here https://eastdevon.gov.uk/business-andinvestment/business-and-investment-information/coronavirus-business-case-studies/
d. Does the Deputy Leader welcome the recent Government announcements to support skills
recovery and how can the EDDC encourage such initiatives locally?
Answer:
We continue to engage with the Team Devon approach which brings together local skills and
training providers through the People Group. We will ensure that we make the most of new
developments such as the forthcoming Future Skills Centre in the former Flybe Training
Academy. We are also represented on the steering group for the Building Greater Exeter
initiative which is designed to support skills development in the construction sector. We will
continue to engage with partners such as DCC and the DWP to ensure that we successfully
harness new initiatives such as the Lifetime Skills Guarantee to best effect locally.
e. How is the EDDC involved with helping the Kick-Start and Job Retention schemes?
Answer:
The Kickstart scheme is an important opportunity to support young people in to work through
work placements. We are currently working with partners including the DWP and DCC to
explore how best to ensure that effective gateway provision is in place to support access to
the scheme. This is particularly for businesses who are only able to offer a number of
placements below the current 30 threshold required to access the scheme directly. We are
also investigating the potential to provide placements within the Council.
f. How will the Self-employment income support scheme be managed in East Devon?
Answer:
This scheme is administered nationally by HM Revenues and Customs.
Question 15: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Portfolio Holder for Finance from
Councillor Mike Allen
a. When can you report on the progress with the Covid-19 Financial Hardship Fund policy
and how it will help in rebuilding longer term financial resilience?
page 36

Answer:
We have spent £37,903 to date and made 190 awards. We have seen the numbers increase
for October. We have a dedicated resource dealing with these cases so that we can look at
wider support needs as well as addressing short term support. Some of these are people
have been referred into us by other stakeholders (Citizens Advice, DWP, etc) as well as
residents contacting us direct. Ensuring residents are getting that wider need is really
important in helping to rebuild financial resilience. This will cover a range of things such as
money advice (dealing with debt, budgeting etc), accessing other welfare benefits, support
with housing etc.
b. We were £1.1m down on council tax income in May but what is the position in September?
Answer:
The position as at the end of September is that we are £781K down on this time last year
which equates to a drop in collection rate of 0.66%. Position is improving and this is as the
same time of re-starting recovery action.
c. Will Assets & Commercialisation income be substantially reduced in 20/21 and by how
much?
Answer:
The Council when asked offered a rent deferral for 3 months at the start of the virus,
repayable in instalments over the following 18 months. Only a very small number of tenants
have taken up this offer and the repayments in part will be made within this current financial
year and the remainder in the following year. It is only if these rents or other rents become in
default that it will affect our budgets (if debt is written off as non-collectable). It is still too
early to determine the impact on our rented out properties but we will monitor carefully. The
biggest impact has arisen at the East Devon Business Centre where an unusually high
number of offices have become vacant, not surprising bearing in mind the flexible nature of
the leases, this will have an impact on the income budget for this property but it will not be
material in overall terms.
The Commercial Investment Fund as part of the Council’s Commercialisation Strategy only
currently involves one property, and the return has not been effected.

d. What effect on our finances will the 100% Business rate relief given for 2020/21 worth
£18.62m and how will this affect the medium term financial plan?
Answer:
No impact to our finances as this is fully funded by government

e. What has been the impact to date on EDDC income from tax receipts and what is the
trend? How will this impact base budgets for future years?
Answer:
Council tax receipts covered in answer b. Monitoring closely impacts however recovery has
only re-started in the last few months and economic climate is still uncertain so impact on
base budgets is still unknown.

page 37

Question 16: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Leader of the Council from
Councillor Mike Allen
a. The Council notes and thanks Andrew Ennis’ teams who report a very heavy workload in
respect of antisocial behaviour and helping businesses to adapt to changing COVID 19
regulations. Since the prognosis for new pandemic waves is not good what has been
learned from working with County and other District colleagues to develop and manage
data relating to our shielding residents; and what has been learned about our ability to
liaise with voluntary sector to supply food and resources to shielded residents?
b. How many cases of households have you reviewed who are in arrears and what types of
household are they – how many have disabled occupants and how many of the arrears
cases have working adults in the family?
Answer:
In relation to our own tenants, we are constantly and proactively reviewing arrears and
monitoring rent accounts closely. I am delighted to report that our rent collection rate remains
very high at 99.56% of rent due as a result of our close and joint working with tenants.
Household composition data will be presented to the Poverty Panel once an up to date
analysis has been performed.
We do not have access to rent arrears data for private sector housing tenants, but we are
anticipating a rise in rent arrears due to the economic impact of the pandemic and once the
eviction moratorium ends we might experience a rise in homelessness.
Question 17: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Portfolio Holder for Corporate
Services and COVID 19 Response & Recovery from Councillor Mike Allen
To what extent have Council employees recovered from the stresses of the last 7 months?
What can be done to help their resilience with the next wave over the winter?
Answer:
We are aware of the need for active engagement with our employees during this difficult time
and our managers are ensuring their communication with all employees is a priority issue.
This is reinforced by our work practices and policies that back up our IIP accreditation.
During the summer we did undertake a staff survey and a summary of the results follows. We
have acted on the issues that were raised and they will help guide us over the winter months:
The Council
 96% agreed that as a one Council Team, we have shown the willingness and flexibility
required to successfully adapt to the challenges posed by the pandemic.
 83% agreed that our managers are demonstrating the capabilities and confidence
required to lead us forward at this time, 6% disagreed.
 90% agreed that our organisational values have underpinned our actions and
behaviours during the covid-19 crisis.
 91% agreed that East Devon District Council is communicating with them effectively.
Your mental health and wellbeing

page 38






74% would rate their mental health as good, 8% would rate their mental health as
poor.
80% agreed that EDDC supports them to balance work and caring responsibilities
effectively, 5% disagreed.
86% feel supported by their line manager, 7% do not.
84% agreed they have enough contact with their line manager, 10% disagreed.

People’s top six concerns were:
1. Wellbeing of myself / colleagues due to a lack of face to face contact with / support
from colleagues / lack of positive work related outcomes that come from talking to
colleagues in the office.
2. Current excessive workload.
3. Lack of staff / lack of managers, need to recruit.
4. Going back to the office building with its high risk of infection (some mentioned air
filtration system).
5. Difficult work / life balance (most mentioned childcare).
6. Job security / redundancy.
When asked for any other comments about mental health and wellbeing, the most common
were:
1. I feel isolated, I want to do face to face work / see my team.
2. Working from home has had a positive impact / I want to keep working from home.
3. My Manager has been supportive / had regular meetings.
4. I don’t have a work / life balance (most mentioned children).
Working from home
 80% agreed that working from home had not adversely affected their productivity, 10%
disagreed.
 77% agreed that they had the tools they needed to work effectively from home, 14%
disagreed.
When asked what would help them work more productively from home, the most common
answers were:
1. Having two screens / a second screen.
2. Having a proper office chair.
3. Being able to print / a printer.
4. Strata to sort out system connectivity issues – drops out all the time / goes slow.
Any other comments, the most common comments were:
1. My team / the council are doing a great job in difficult circumstances.
2. I have felt well supported by my manager / the council.
3. Regular staff updates / communications / news / team updates has been great.
4. Working from home has had a positive impact / increased productivity / want to do it
more’.
Question 18: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Portfolio Holder for Finance from
Councillor Mike Allen
a. Have Finance resolved the CTR hardship scheme issues for working age and how much
of the £713,034 budget has been spent to date?
Answer:

page 39

Yes the scheme was implemented in August. To date 4,429 awards have been made
totalling £655,344. It is likely that all remaining funding will be spent by the end of the
financial year.

b. Congratulations to Officers in setting up an online financial support form for those who
had been negatively impacted. Has this increased from the 444 requests which have
been received? How are we tracking this tailored support – help with Benefits, Council
Tax or via the Financial Hardship Fund? Do we know how many were disabled/ how
many were over 65? Is the Covid-19 Hardship Fund Policy adequately funded?
Answer:
Yes the numbers have increased. To date we’ve had 756 forms submitted for financial
support. The requests are broken down under the following categories:
Support requested
Change your council tax
instalment
Top up Council Tax reduction
Essentials
Other*
Top up Housing costs

Number of requests
354
194
188
199
205

Note. Some of the requests from our residents will be for multiple types of support and
therefore the number of requests for different types of support will be higher than the forms
completed.
*Other – examples of this includes someone wanting to claim Council tax reduction or
needing to make an arrangement.
We don’t capture whether they are disabled or over 65 but we have captured their
employment status which is as follows:
 349 employed
 287 self-employed
 120 unemployed. Within the unemployed figure this could include those of pension
age who are not working.
Additional heating costs due to the change in weather is likely to increase demand on gas
and electric costs over autumn and winter. Although it is difficult to predict costs at this
time as the local economic situation is still uncertain we consider the level of funding at this
current stage is likely to be adequate but are continuing to monitor the situation.
c. To date Discretionary Housing Payments fund for 2020/21 has been supplemented by
Government to £279,520. But, to date you have spent £67,355 and dealt with 356
applications. Can you expect that more of this fund will be needed during the winter?
Answer:
As at the beginning of October we had spent £130,381.64 on Discretionary housing
payments. We are on track to spend all of this funding within the financial year.

page 40

Question 19: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Portfolio Holder for Coast Country
and Environment from Councillor Mike Allen
a. How will the EDDC take advantage of the Government’s social housing decarbonisation
programme and what effect will this have on our finances?
Answer:
We were successful in our bid under the Green Homes Grant programme and secured £500k
towards a programme of installing 100 ground/air source heat pumps to be match funded
with our own contribution.
We will be bidding for further investment in our housing stock as government programmes
are launched.
Decarbonising our housing stock will require a significant investment over the next twenty
years and our Housing Revenue Account is being updated to ensure that we can afford this
investment alongside other priorities and ‘big ticket’ items such as compliance and tenant
safety measures, and the provision of new affordable housing.

b. How many people have responded to the Wild Honiton project and when will a report be
issued?
Answer:
Wild Honiton consultation responses received 13th October and initial headlines are:
 272 responses online, 4 more paper versions.
 Honiton Bottom & The Glen most visited sites in the town
 Walking (without a dog) and socialising are the main uses for the green spaces
 Improvements for nature (wildflower meadows, bug boxes, tree planting etc.) more
desired than improvements for people (benches, signage, footpaths)
 60% said access for people can’t be improved
 80% said they would be interested in attending events at green spaces
 5% already volunteer, 34% would like to
A full assessment of the consultation and a project report with suggested actions, outcomes
and activities along with a funding proposal (Heritage Lottery based) will be presented to
Ward Cllrs and Portfolio Holders for discussion by the end of November.

Question 20: Procedure Rule 9.2 to the Chair of Council from Councillor
Mike Allen
The Standards Committee and Sub-Committee must be democratically balanced and
transparent. Why then are there two Portfolio Holders out of three voting members on the
Sub-Committee especially when a Portfolio Holder is subject to a complaint? Why is there
not a completely independent and impartial majority of outside of appointments allowed to
vote on this committee and on Standards to reduce political bias? Lastly why is the same
person always used for investigations when there are complaints of inadequate and partial
investigations since this can expose the Council to litigation?
Answer:
Cllr Allen is incorrect in his assertion that there are two Portfolio Holders on the subcommittee. The Standards procedure is under review and this may include the size of the
committee as well as the potential of independent members to vote, although the ability of
independent members to vote may not always provide the fair balance that Cllr Allen seems
page 41

to be seeking. At present the political bias on the Standards Committee is in favour of the
opposition not the controlling group.
The use of an alternative external investigator was recommended by the sub-committee after
the last hearing.

page 42

Agenda Item 9
Summary of recommendations being presented to Council
21 October 2020 (Minutes in full have been circulated and are available on line.)

Cabinet – 30 September 2020
207 Exeter & East Devon Enterprise Zone
RECOMMENDED To Council
4. That it agrees the principle of increasing borrowing up to
£20m against ring fenced business rate income to fund the
delivery of capital projects.
211

Exeter Airport

RECOMMENDED

that Council:
6. Supported the proposed business rate relief request within
State Aid limits to be funded through the Enterprise Zone
programme,
7. The borrowing of up to £3.7m against ring fenced business
rate income to implement the scheme.

Cabinet - 8 October 2020
217

Financial Strategy 2021 - 2031

RECOMMENDED

that Cabinet recommend to Council:
1. To approve the Financial Plan (2021-2031), and
2. approve the proposals contained in the minutes of the
Budget Strategy and Capital Allocation Panel to address
the projected budget shortfall outlined in the Financial
Plan.

218

Revenue and Capital Outturn Report 2019 - 2020

RECOMMENDED

that Cabinet recommend to Council;
1. To agree the outturn position for 2019/20 including the
implications and proposals relating to the Balances and
Reserves held by the Council, and
2. specially agree that £2m was transferred from the
General Fund Balance to create a new Reserve (MTFP
Risk Reserve) and the General Fund Balance was then
retained at £4.395m as detailed in 2.7 of the report.

1
page 43

219

Financial Monitoring Report 2020/21

RECOMMENDED

221

that Council:

1. Acknowledge the variances identified as part of the Revenue
and Capital Monitoring process up to Month 5, and
2. agree to use the General Fund Balance to meet the in year
net shortfall as result of Covid-19 currently estimated at
£1.163m
3. agree as a matter of urgency, that a further letter be sent to
the District’s 3 MPs highlighting the situation regarding LED
charitable trust and that the request be sought to lobby
Government to a change to funding proposals for charitable
trusts.
Member Champions

RECOMMENDED

To Council to:
1. Reintroduce Member Champions, amend the Constitution as
detailed in Appendix 2 and that the Member Champion
areas of interest and appointees be made as detailed in
paragraph 4.
2. Agree to receive a report following a further review the role
of Member Champions prior to the Annual Meeting of
Council in 2021.

223 Protocol for Members Advisory Panels on Planning Matters
update
RECOMMENDED

That Council:
3. incorporate the Protocol for Member Advisory Panels on
Planning Matters into the Constitution in the Code of Good
Practice for Councillors and Officers Dealing With Planning
Matters

Strategic Planning Committee – 16 September 2020
61

Adoption and implementation of the revised Community
Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule

RECOMMENDED

to Council:
1. that the revised Community Infrastructure Levy Charging
Schedule attached to Appendix A be approved with effect
from 1 February 2021.

2
page 44

Agenda Item 9a
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held at Online via the Zoom App on 30
September 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 9.10 pm
196

Public speaking
Sophie Martin had submitted a question, asking how many individuals have been issued
with a Section 59 Police Reform Act 2002 warning notice in 2019/2020 in Exmouth and
how have EDDC followed up with persistent offenders who continue to race up and down
Queen’s Drive and around Exmouth Town persistently. She also asked if the recently
installed CCTV has been effective, as she believed the purpose of it was to help identify
potential offences. She outlined how the attractions and potential of the town were
blighted by the ongoing problem of antisocial behaviour resulting from cars speeding in
the town.
In response, the issue was recognised as a police matter for enforcement, but that the
Local Action Group, set up under the umbrella of the Community Safety Partnership,
continued to work to resolve the perennial problem. A highway barrier had been
considered by the County Council in previous years, but was not considered viable.
Data has been requested from the Police, and agreement was made to write to Sophie
Martin, outlining the background of the work of the Community Safety Partnership in
dealing with this issue and the enforcement data; and for the Chief Executive to ensure
our Community Safety Officer raised the matter with the Police and liaise with Exmouth
Police Inspector, Antonia Weekes in that regard.

197

Minutes of the previous meeting
The minutes of Cabinet held on 21 July 2020 were confirmed as a true record.

198

Declarations of interest
Minute 205 Minutes of the Overview Committee 24 September 2020.
Councillor Andrew Moulding, Personal, Patron of Arc.
Minute 205 Minutes of the Overview Committee 24 September 2020.
Councillor Ian Hall, Personal, Devon County Councillor and Mental Health Champion,
Vice-Chairman of the Trustees of Arc, Chair of Cloakham Lawns Sports Centre.
Minute 207 Exeter and East Devon Enterprise Zone.
Councillor Paul Hayward, Personal, Director of Science Park Ltd.

199

Confidential/exempt item(s)
There were no items identified.

200

Forward Plan

page 45

Cabinet 30 September 2020

Members agreed the contents of the Forward Plan for key decisions for the period
1 October 2020 to 31 January 2021.
201

Minutes of Scrutiny Committee held on 21 May 2020
Members received and noted the Minutes of Scrutiny Committee held on 21 May 2020.

202

Minutes of Community Grant Panel held on 1 September 2020
Members received and noted the Minutes of Community Grant Panel held on
1 September 2020.
RESOLVED that the following recommendations be agreed:
Minute 25 Crowdfund East Devon - Budleigh Salterton Community Workshop
Bid
a maximum grant of £4,867 be made towards the project from the Crowdfund East
Devon pledge.
Minute 26 Crowdfund East Devon - Coleridge Memorial Statue Bid
a maximum grant of £5,160 be made towards the project from the Crowdfund East
Devon pledge.

203

Minutes of Strata Joint Scrutiny Committee held on 8 September
2020
Members received and noted the Minutes of Strata Joint Scrutiny Committee held on 8
September 2020.

204

Minutes of Budget Setting and Capital Allocation Panel held on 16
September 2020
Members received and noted the Minutes of Budget Setting and Capital Allocation Panel
held on 16 September 2020.
RESOLVED that the following recommendations be agreed:
Minute 5 Draft Financial Strategy 2021 – 2031
1. the debate by the Budget Setting and Capital Allocations Panel on the Draft
Financial Strategy 2021 – 2031 is taken into account prior to the strategy being
presented to Council;
2. a Task and Finish Forum be set up on the topic of Commercialisation, to
include specifically the issue of asset transfer to town and parish councils in
conjunction with the Asset Management Forum. The Forum to consist of ten
members, politically balanced. In the event that political cannot be achieved, to
reapportion seats as appropriate.

205

Minutes of the Overview Committee 24 September 2020
page 46

Cabinet 30 September 2020

The minutes of the Overview Committee of 24 September 2020 were submitted as a late
item with agreement of the Leader.
Members received and noted the minutes of the Overview Committee of 24 September.
Discussion on Minute 64 (relating to Local Authority Mental Health Challenge and the
Healthy Weight Declaration) included:
·
·

·

Need for supporting staff and councillors with poor mental health
Clarity on the role being recommended by the Overview Committee, to establish if the
desire was to sign up to the declaration or to go further in providing a form of mental
health service;
Complexity of the subject matter for one officer to cover was questioned, with warnings of
the possible ramifications if incorrect advice was given.

RESOLVED that Cabinet note and thank the Overview Committee for its work and
recommendations; and instruct the Strategic Lead for Housing, Health and Environment
to prepare a report to be brought to the next Cabinet to consider the recommendations
and cost/resourcing implications, with a view to signing the Local Authority Mental Health
Declaration.

206

Minutes of the Housing Review Board 17 September 2020
The minutes of the Housing Review Board of 17 September 2020 were submitted as a
late item with agreement of the Leader.
Members received and noted the Minutes of the Housing Review Board of 17 September
2020.
RESOLVED that the following recommendations be agreed:
Minute 72 Advantage South West - renewal of subscription
that the Council continue paying the annual subscription to maintain the membership to
Advantage South West.
Minute 73 Air source heat pumps
Approve the continued use and installation of air source heat pumps as a viable carbon efficient
alternative to conventional boilers.
Minute 75 Climate change action plan
1. Members agree to the climate strategy actions detailed in the report.
2. Members endorse the cultural shift required to move to a carbon neutral housing service
within 20 years.
3. Approval is given for the need for an additional Programme Works Officer who will focus
on energy efficiency measures and drive forward the programme for improvements to the
housing stock, with additional funding being designated from the Housing Revenue
Account.
page 47

Cabinet 30 September 2020

Minute 78 Finance report to end August 2020
Agree the budget reallocations within the report, note the impact assessments and
approve the report on the Housing Revenue Account financial position to end of August
2020.
Minute 79 Stock condition survey

Approve the delivery of the stock condition survey by an external consultant sourced
through an approved procurement framework.
Minute 80 Formal complaints

1. that the Housing Leadership Team re-iterate the importance of outstanding
customer care, considering additional training and awareness opportunities where
appropriate.
2. that the Housing Operational Managers group reviews processes to ensure they
are effectively co-ordinating responses and updates on formal complaints and
councillor enquiries raised with them.
3. that the Housing Services Manager works with the council’s Information and
Complaints Officer, and customers on the Designated Tenant Complaints Panel,
to self-assess against the ombudsman’s new code by 31 December 2020.
4. that the Housing Services Manager ensures that better communication is given
from Housing Officers in responding to queries from tenants to effectively manage
expectations of customers.
Minute 81 Sailor's Rest, Exmouth - allocations and management

Approve the policy to provide support and clarity to the allocation and management
process for the flats at 18A and 18B St. Andrews Road, Exmouth, whilst they are being
used as move on accommodation.
Minute 82 Structure of the housing service

RECOMMENDED:
1. that Cabinet note the changes to the structure and approve the need for the recruitment
of a specialist Mental Health Support Officer to work within the housing services team.
2. that Cabinet approve additional funding (£37,500 – Grade 6 with associated costs) is
designated from the Housing Revenue Account.

207

Exeter & East Devon Enterprise Zone
The Enterprise Zone Programme Manager provided an update on the financial position
with regard to the Enterprise Zone (EZ) programme which sought approval for additional
borrowing against future ring-fenced business rate income. The additional borrowing
would allow further investment in enabling the delivery of new commercial space and
jobs in the Enterprise Zone, supporting recovery from
Covid-19 and providing opportunities for clean and inclusive growth.
In response to a question on the Covid-19 Economy and Business Recovery Prospectus,
it was confirmed that a further report was set to go before Cabinet in October on the
plan.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
1. Notes the progress made within the Enterprise Zone designation
2. Agrees the principle of a £1m fund to enable the continuation of an Enterprise
Zone Business Rate Relief programme
page 48

Cabinet 30 September 2020

3. Receives further papers setting out detailed investment proposals.
RECOMMENDED to Council
4. That it agrees the principle of increasing borrowing up to £20m against ring fenced
business rate income to fund the delivery of capital projects.
REASON
Cabinet last received a paper on the financial position of the EZ in March 2019. During
the intervening period, work had focused on gaining approval for projects that support
the delivery of the EZ, in terms of overcoming identified barriers and bringing forward
catalytic investments that could increase the pace of delivery for new commercial space
and jobs.
208

COVID-19 Recovery planning
The Service Lead Countryside and Leisure outlined the work that had and was being
progressed to produce a cohesive approach to East Devon DC’s recovery planning as
the district emerges from the Response stage of Covid-19. The report aimed to give
Cabinet reassurance that the Recovery planning work had followed best practice
guidance from the Devon Emergency Planning Partnership (DEPP) in terms of process
and documentation. The Council had been fully engaged with Team Devon’s strategic
recovery planning work through participation in various sub groups such as the Devon
Recovery Co-ordination Group and the Economy and Business Recovery group.
The Leader expressed his thanks to officers for their efforts during the pandemic, with
specific thanks to the Chief Executive in regard to his report to Team Devon earlier that
day.
Other Members voiced their thanks and admiration for the achievements across the
services by officers in difficult circumstances, dealing with vastly increased workloads.
The Portfolio Holder for Finance led a short applause by the Cabinet and Members to
show their appreciation.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
1. Approved the Service recovery planning process and supports the work of council
officers providing leadership and support to the Council’s recovery work.
2. Noted that officers of East Devon District Council were leading the work on the
Service Recovery Action Plan and would continue to provide support to progress
the individual work streams.
3. Continued to support and participate in the engagement of Devon CC’s strategic
recovery co-ordination work through Officers membership of its thematic sub
groups.
REASON
To ensure that East Devon District Council could continue to co-ordinate its recovery
planning work with its internal services and to participate fully with Team Devon’s
strategic recovery planning work. This would enable a continuation of current recovery
planning work and so retain a cohesive approach to its Service Recovery Action Plan
going forward whilst uncertainty still remains over the likelihood and impacts of further
spikes of the pandemic. Other recovery plans had been produced at a strategic level
such as Team Devon’s Economy & Business Recovery Plan but these were not placepage 49

Cabinet 30 September 2020

based and sufficiently fine-grained as to be effective at district level. There were and
would continue to be issues and themes that were best progressed at this strategic level
and so the Council’s alignment with these recovery plans would be important. The focus
for this Council had been working on its own internal recovery arrangements.
209

Towards Zero Carbon Development in the West End
Henry Gent had submitted two questions on this report prior to the meeting.
Question 1: CO2 emissions from energy from waste
A recent report provided several estimates for the CO2 emissions from waste
incinerators. The average figure is 800 g CO2/KWhe. Table 3 in the report from UKWIN
(below) provides several examples of different estimates.
UKWIN-2018-Incineration-Climate-Change-Report.pdf
What is the figure used by WSP in the feasibility study when calculating the CO2
emissions by the proposed EfW Hill Barton power station in g CO2/kWhe ?
Answer
WSP (consultants) has not used a figure for emissions from the process of waste
incineration in this report.
Referring to DCC approved planning application, the Portfolio Holder for Coast, Country
and Environment read out the Council’s environment officer submission to the
application, which covered the extensive gas cleaning system to be incorporated in the
efW plant and the ongoing maintenance and monitoring.
The Portfolio Holder stated he would research further information on emissions and
respond to Mr Gent directly.

Question 2: proportion of feedstock that will be fossil fuel based products
Of the waste feedstock to be burned at the EfW Hill Barton CHP station, what proportion
will be fossil fuel based products?
Answer
The County Council acts as the Waste Disposal Authority and hence it determined the
planning application for the EfW plant at Hill Barton. The following is an extract from the
relevant officer report;
“The energy generation process will utilise fibre fuel derived from commercial and
industrial waste, commonly known as Refuse Derived Fuel (RDF). This fuel is typically
composed of plastics, composites, textiles, and small amounts of wood, paper &
cardboard, and is the residual material remaining after recyclable materials, metals and
inert materials have been removed from the waste received at transfer stations and
material recycling facilities such as the EMS facility at Hill Barton.”
The Service Lead Growth, Development and Prosperity set out the key issues
associated with achieving large scale zero carbon development in the West End of the
District. He provided an overview of the results of a recently completed feasibility study
and sought endorsement for the principle of submitting a funding application to the Heat
Network Investment Programme.
In response to a question about burning plastics, the Portfolio Holder for Coast, Country
and Environment outlined how filtering systems within the stack of a plant deal with
gases given off through burning, with checks by the Environment Agency to ensure these
are fully operational. He also added that he would like to see some flexibility to review
page 50

Cabinet 30 September 2020

any new technology in the field reviewed, as and when it arose, because of the
timescales of delivery.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
1. Noted the findings of the feasibility study and the key issues associated with
achieving zero carbon development at Cranbrook and Skypark.
2. Endorsed the principle of submitting a funding bid to the Heat Network Investment
Programme.
3. Received a further report setting out a proposal for the role that Council could play
in enabling the delivery of zero carbon development including the investment
case.
REASON
To ensure that there was a clear pathway for achieving large scale zero carbon
development in the West End of the District.
210

Nature Recovery Networks & Re-Wilding projects
Mr Ed Dolphin read out a statement, in which h welcomed and complimented the report
confirming the wide recognition that our natural environment is degrading rapidly and
there is a need for action. He felt that some aspects of the plan for re-wilding can be
controversial, especially in urban settings, grass cutting being one theme to recent
stories and letters in the Sidmouth Herald. The experimental regime needs refinement,
but many objections are based on misconceptions, which is recognised in the report,
recommending a campaign of public engagement and enlightenment. He highlighted
that he works with a number of environmental groups and organisations and our natural
environment is in crisis, the decline of insect populations being one of the most
significant problems confronting us. EDDC’s Nature Recovery Networks & Re-wilding
Projects can make an important contribution to biodiversity in East Devon, and he
commended the report to the Cabinet.
The Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment presented his report that promoted
the wider coverage of nature recovery networks and re-wilding projects, building on the
work undertaken already in some of the district’s green spaces. It took the form of a
review document with a series of recommendations to form a policy on nature recovery
networks and re-wilding activity. The report built on the priorities and objectives set out in
the Green Space Plan and was consistent with the council’s corporate outstanding
environment theme. The report looked at national guidance and considers definitions and
existing projects. The initiative advances a commitment in the Climate Change Strategy
and stated objectives in several Service Plans.
Tree planting was raised as an issue for inclusion in the recommendation, but agreement
was reached that this would be included in a specific report on the work required to
deliver this action from the Climate Change Strategy.
Members spoke about the need to address factors such as the extreme decline in insect
species, including a statement about the Woodbury Wide Awake festival that built on
wildflower surveys in that area.
Concern was raised about planting areas set out in new developments as a requirement
of the planning conditions, which were subsequently removed or impacted by the owners
page 51

Cabinet 30 September 2020

of the newly built properties. An example was given of trees without Tree Preservation
Orders being removed from a development in Exmouth.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
To progress the Climate Change Strategy and Service Plan commitments on nature
recovery and re-wilding;
1. extend coverage of nature recovery networks and rewilding projects, carefully
defining EDDC aspirations;
2. work through the green spaces identified in the Green Space Plan and assess
whether they were suitable for recovery/re-wilding;
3. identify a suitable re-wilding site in every East Devon town as an exemplar
within a year;
4. identify areas of Housing land suitable for nature recovery and/or re-wilding
and consult with tenants with proposals;
5. map and record areas identified for recovery/re-wilding and monitor the
benefits arising from the process;
6. establish an improved understanding of the position of fauna and flora species
in the district;
7. establish a campaign to promote the benefits of rewilding in a range of
settings; and
8. establish a project group, adopt the guiding principles, and specify what
constitutes re-wilding and how this can be achieved in the district.
REASON
To progress ambitions in the Climate Change Strategy, Green Space Plan, and Service
Plans aimed at achieving improved biodiversity and natural habitats through re-wilding
and implementing nature recovery corridors.
211

Exeter Airport
The Service Lead Growth, Development and Prosperity provided an overview of the
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the operation of Exeter Airport and set out a
proposed package of support. This provided a response to a request for business rate
relief and sought approval for additional funds to be made available through the
Enterprise Zone programme to enable the Long Lane enhancement scheme to progress.
The potential to bid to the forthcoming Free Port programme was highlighted as well as
the potential to develop a sustainable aviation cluster centred on the Airport.
In response to a query on protecting the Council’s investment, the Service Lead
confirmed that the Airport are willing to enter in negotiations to conclude the terms of a
funding agreement with security provided in the form of a Parent Company Guarantee.
Discussion took place on encouraging all local MPs to pursue the proposal from MP
Simon Jupp for introducing business rates relief for airports on a national basis. Other
nearby airports such as Bournemouth also had no current rate relief, as opposed to the
approach in Scotland of providing a one year business rate holiday for all airports.
Members were asked to use their best endeavours to lobby MPs to help secure action on
rate relief on a national stage. The Strategic Lead for Finance confirmed that, if
forthcoming, this would overwrite the local rate releief that was being put forward in the
report.

page 52

Cabinet 30 September 2020

The issue of the impact of heavy goods traffic outside of the Long Lane scheme would
be taken up with the County Council.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
1. Note the significant impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the operation of the
Airport,
2. Supported the proposed business rate relief request within State Aid limits to be
funded through the Enterprise Zone programme,
3. Endorsed increasing the budget for the Long Lane project by £1.1m,
4. Granted delegated authority to the Chief Executive in consultation with the
Leader, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Finance to agree the terms of and
complete the funding agreements and any other necessary legal documentation to
achieve the above recommendations,
5. Noted the potential for an application to be submitted for Freeport status and to
receive a further report on these proposals before any bid was submitted,
6. Endorsed the concept of a sustainable aviation cluster centred on Exeter Airport
and received a further report on how this concept could come forward.
RECOMMENDED to Council:
7. The borrowing of up to £3.7m against ring fenced business rate income to
implement the scheme.
REASON:
To ensure that there was a package of support in place for the Airport to help counteract
the impact of the lockdown, promote recovery and chart a course to a more sustainable
future.
212

Deferred items to next Cabinet
The Leader, with the agreement of the Cabinet, deferred the following items to the next
meeting of the Cabinet:
· Financial Strategy 2021 – 2031
· Revenue and Capital Outturn Report 2019 – 2020
· Financial Monitoring Report 2020/21
· Member Champions
· Complaints to the Ombudsman during 2019/20
· Protocol for Members Advisory Panels on Planning Matters update
· Leader’s annual report on urgent executive decisions
· Acquisition of Ocean Blue, The Esplanade, Exmouth – Process Followed and
Business Case for Acquisition

Attendance List
Present:
Portfolio Holders
M Armstrong
P Arnott
P Hayward
J Bailey
G Jung

Portfolio Holder Sustainable Homes and Communities
Leader
Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder Economy and Assets
Portfolio Holder Corporate Services and COVID-19
Response and Recovery
Portfolio Holder Coast, Country and Environment
page 53

Cabinet 30 September 2020

P Millar
M Rixson
J Rowland
J Loudoun

Cabinet apologies:
D Ledger

Portfolio Holder Democracy and Transparency
Portfolio Holder Climate Action
Portfolio Holder Finance
Portfolio Holder Policy Co-ordination and Regional
Engagement

Portfolio Holder Strategic Planning

Also present (for some or all the meeting)
Councillor Mike Allen
Councillor Denise Bickley
Councillor Susie Bond
Councillor Colin Brown
Councillor Maddy Chapman
Councillor Olly Davey
Councillor Alan Dent
Councillor Peter Faithfull
Councillor Steve Gazzard
Councillor Ian Hall
Councillor Sam Hawkins
Councillor Nick Hookway
Councillor Sarah Jackson
Councillor Paul Jarvis
Councillor Vicky Johns
Councillor Kathy McLauchlan
Councillor Helen Parr
Councillor Geoff Pook
Councillor Geoff Pratt
Councillor Val Ranger
Councillor Eleanor Rylance
Councillor Brenda Taylor
Councillor Joe Whibley
Councillor Tom Wright
Also present:
Officers:
Tim Child, Service Lead - Place, Assets & Commercialisation
Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance
Ed Freeman, Service Lead Strategic Planning and Development Management
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment
Naomi Harnett, Principal Projects Manager East Of Exeter
Susan Howl, Democratic Services Manager
Debbie Meakin, Democratic Services Officer
Charles Plowden, Service Lead Countryside and Leisure
John Symes, Finance Manager
Anita Williams, Principal Solicitor (and Deputy Monitoring Officer)
Mark Williams, Chief Executive
Andrew Wood, Service Lead - Growth Development and Prosperity

page 54

Cabinet 30 September 2020

Chairman

Date:

page 55

Agenda Item 9b
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held at Online via the Zoom app on 8
October 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 3.00 pm and ended at 6.29 pm
213 Public speaking
There were no members of the public wishing to speak.
214

Minutes of the previous meeting held on 30 September 2020
Subject to Minute 211 being amended so that Resolution 2 becomes a Recommendation
to Council the minutes of Cabinet held on 30 September 2020 were confirmed as a true
record.

215

Declarations of interest
Minute 226 Newton Poppleford & Harpford Neighbourhood Plan Examiner's Report.
Councillor Eileen Wragg, Personal, brother lives in Newton Poppleford.
Minute 226 Newton Poppleford & Harpford Neighbourhood Plan Examiner's Report.
Councillor Paul Hayward, Personal, Clerk to the Parish Council who assisted in the
creation of the Neighbourhood Plan.
Councillor Hayward said he was biased / predetermined and therefore would not be
involved in the vote on the matter.

216

Confidential/exempt item(s)
There were no items identified in this way.

217

Financial Strategy 2021 - 2031
The Strategic Lead Finance presented the draft Financial Plan (2021-2031) for
consideration. He stated the Plan ensured the financial stability of the Council as it
continued to respond and recover from the Covid-19 pandemic. A 10-Year projection
showed services as they were presently with no changes to additional services. He
discussed in detail the MTFP over the next 3 years and recommended to set aside a
£2m reserve to mitigate losses from central government from changes in business rates
and the New Homes Bonus.
Discussions included the following:
· The Council’s borrowing position had been reduced significantly from the selling of
the Knowle; therefore no additional borrowing costs required based on the capital
programme set out in the MTFP.
· The set aside £2m reserve would come from the 2019/20 General Fund outturn
position giving us a high General Fund Balance at year end.
· £2m reserve allows the Council to buy time if required to consider their aims and
objectives and sync this with the budget

page 56

Cabinet 8 October 2020

·

The need to look into revenue from car parks through the task and finish forums
and costs of public toilets in order bring forward proposals to balance the 2021/22
budget.

The Portfolio Holder Finance and Members congratulated and thanked Simon Davey for
his work, report and very clear explanation of the current and future financial positon of
the Council.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
1. approve the Financial Plan (2021-2031), and
2. approve the proposals contained in the minutes of the Budget Strategy and
Capital Allocation Panel to address the projected budget shortfall outlined in the
Financial Plan.
REASON:
It was good practice in managing the finances of the Council to produce a Financial Plan
looking at the future direction of the Council’s budgets. To consider the implications of
spending plans and the level of resources likely to be available. It was only by looking at
the Council’s budget over a longer period, that action could be taken that would influence
the direction and shape of future service delivery within a balanced budget.
218

Revenue and Capital Outturn Report 2019 - 2020
The Finance Manager presented his report which stated that during 2019/20 budget
monitoring reports had informed members of budget variations and the anticipated yearend financial position. The report contained the final position for the year and compared
the outturn position against the budgets set. It outlined the implications of the results on
the Council’s reserves and made recommendations on any reserve transfers. The
Council’s Unaudited Accounts were issued on 17 August 2020 and published on the
Council’s website, it was anticipated the Audited Accounts would be issued prior to the
amended publishing date 30 November 2020.
RECOMMENDED that Cabinet recommend to Council;
1. To agree the outturn position for 2019/20 including the implications and proposals
relating to the Balances and Reserves held by the Council, and
2. specially agree that £2m was transferred from the General Fund Balance to create
a new Reserve (MTFP Risk Reserve) and the General Fund Balance was then
retained at £4.395m as detailed in 2.7 of the report.
REASON:
To report the outturn position for the Council’s approved budgets for the General Fund,
Housing Revenue Account and Capital Expenditure. The financial position aligned to the
Council’s Statement of Accounts but the position in the report was presented in a style
that accords to the budget setting and monitoring reports that members receive.
Members were asked to note the variations from the budgets identified within the report
and consider the final position. It was appropriate at this stage to reflect on the reserves
and balances held by the Council and determine if these were the right reserves at the
right levels.

219

Financial Monitoring Report 2020/21
The Finance Manager gave a summary of the Council’s overall financial position for
2020/21 at the end of month five (31 August 2020).
page 57

Cabinet 8 October 2020

Current monitoring indicated that:
· The General Fund Balance was being maintained at or above the adopted level. A
significant overspend against budget was predicted from a combination of additional
expenditure and reduced income as result of Covid-19.
The overspend was being mitigated through additional Government Funding, including
the recently announced income guarantee scheme, the healthy financial position of the
General Fund Balance was as a result of 2019/20 Outturn position and steps taken by
services. These factors had led to a change in position whereby it was now considered in
year emergency action would not be required to address the shortfall if members were in
agreement to using the General Fund Balance. The Balance still maintained within the
adopted range, although at the lower end.
· The Housing Revenue Account Balance was being maintained at or above the adopted
level.
There was a discussion concerning the disappointment to the Government’s position on
not recompensing charitable trusts that provide leisure services such as LED. A letter
had been sent to East Devon’s MP Simon Jupp but to date no response had been made.
Leisure services were very important to the health and well-being of the district’s
residents and a follow-up to Mr Jupp for a response would be made.
RECOMMENDED to Council that:
1. Acknowledge the variances identified as part of the Revenue and Capital
Monitoring process up to Month 5, and
2. agree to use the General Fund Balance to meet the in year net shortfall as result
of Covid-19 currently estimated at £1.163m
3. agree as a matter of urgency, that a further letter be sent to the District’s 3 MPs
highlighting the situation regarding LED charitable trust and that the request be
sought to lobby Government to a change to funding proposals for charitable trusts.
REASON:
The report updated the overall financial position of the Authority at set periods and
included recommendations where corrective action was required for the remainder of the
financial year.
220

Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme
The Portfolio Holder Finance introduced the report and explained that the Government
published news of this scheme as late as 23 September 2020 for local authorities to go
live with it on 12 October 2020. He wished to credit Libby Jarrett and her team for their
tremendous efforts in getting the report prepared in such a short turnaround. He
particularly praised Libby for her taking the lead across the 3 local authorities to gain a
consistent approach within the region.
The Service Lead Revenues, Benefits and Customer Services Libby Jarrett, explained
the Test and Trace Support Payments had been introduced by Central Government to
encourage people on low incomes who would be financially impacted to self-isolate when
they are required to do so. This in turn would help reduce the transmission of Covid-19
and avoid further social and economic restrictions. In answer to a question to how
residents would know about the scheme, she explained that through the Track and Trace
system any person having to self-isolate would get information on the scheme. The
page 58

Cabinet 8 October 2020

Council’s Communications team were also promoting this locally as well as on the
Council’s website. The Portfolio Holder Finance would receive regular monitoring reports.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
1. Adopt the Test and Trace Support Payments Policies for both the standard
(Appendix 2) and discretionary schemes (Appendix 3.
2. Grant delegated authority to the Council’s S151 Officer in consultation with the
Leader and Portfolio Holder for Finance to adjust the discretionary policy
(Appendix 3) to take account of changes in government guidance or from
experiences in administering the scheme that had not yet been identified or
that might have been unable to be fully considered when developing the policy.
3. Monitor and review payments made, and if necessary, to lobby government via
the District’s local MPs for additional funding should the scheme funding be
insufficient to support all affected residents.
REASON:
The Council needed to have in place a policy for implementing the Test and Trace
Support Payment Scheme. Due to the limited amount of time to developing the schemes
from receiving the guidance, it needed to be able to make provision to adjust the policy.
This was to take account of experiences that might have not been able to be fully
considered when developing the policy which included the level of funding for the
discretionary scheme which would be a fixed amount.
221

Member Champions
The Portfolio Holder Democracy and Transparency presented the report that asked
Members to consider the possibility of the reintroduction of a small number of Member
Champions. He thanked Henry Gordon Lennox for his work and advice on this matter as
well as Cllr Sarah Jackson for her invaluable advice. He thanked all councillors for their
contribution and stated the roles were inter-linked and would be a great asset to the
Council.
He went on to explain that the previous roles of the Lead Members system became unfit
for purpose, was vague and overlapped with Cabinet members hence the need for a
review. The results suggested a reduction in a number of positions to include four new
Member Champions be created, and that
· Cllr Alan Dent be elected Armed Forces Champion
· Cllr Vicky Johns be appointed Sport & Exercise Champion
· Cllr Joe Whibley be appointed Culture Champion, and
· Cllr Tony Woodward be appointed Mental Health Champion
The Chairman thanked Cllr Paul Millar for this efforts and achievement in getting this
review done so quickly.
RECOMMENDED to Council to:
1. Reintroduce Member Champions amend the Constitution as detailed in Appendix
2 and that the Member Champion areas of interest and appointees be made as
detailed in paragraph 4.
2. Agree to receive a report following a further review the role of Member Champions
prior to the Annual Meeting of Council in 2021.
REASON:
page 59

Cabinet 8 October 2020

So Cabinet can decide whether to reintroduce Member Champions and, if so, to
recommend changes to the Constitution to Council together with positions and
appointees.
222

Complaints to the Ombudsman during 2019/20
This item would be discussed at the next meeting to be held on 28 October 2020.

223

Protocol for Members Advisory Panels on Planning Matters update
The Service Lead Planning Strategy and Development Management presented the
report which sought to review the protocol for Members Advisory Panels on planning
matters to ensure that the protocol was up to date and reflected good practice.
In 2007 the Council introduced a process known as the Members Advisory Panel to give
a mechanism whereby Members could engage in pre-application discussions with
developers looking to submit a planning application. The process was designed to give
developers the benefit of input from Members at an early stage of their proposals to
inform their thinking and minimise risk to them. From a Members perspective it gave
them an opportunity to input into the proposals and ensure key concerns were
understood by the developer and could help to influence the proposals at an early stage.
Discussions included the following:
· This would help Members going forward with clear conditions when meeting
developers and landowners
· This should be suggested to Town and Parish Councils to consider adopting this
protocol in their own planning procedures; therefore having a protocol for every
level of the planning process.
The Portfolio Holder Democracy and Transparency thanked the Chairman for initiating
this update and Ed Freeman for his report. He read out a quote from Transparency
International UK:
'This protocol makes provision for transparency over engagement with developers
throughout the entirety of the planning process, which is a key safeguard against the
perception or reality of foul play.’
A change to the Member’s Planning Advisory Group was decided to include other
Portfolio Holders and Assistant Portfolio Holders as determined by the Chair of Advisory
Panel to be appropriate.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
1. in the membership list include the Portfolio Holder for Sustainable Homes and
Communities and add ‘as determined by the Chair of the Panel’ to the sixth bullet
point and adopt the proposed Protocol for Members Advisory Panels on Planning
Matters and that this be published on the Council’s web-site and used as the basis
for all future meetings;
2. agree that the Council makes contact with the Town and Parish network to inform
them about the Councils approach to Member Advisory Panels and suggest they
adopt a similar approach.
RECOMMENDED that Council;
page 60

Cabinet 8 October 2020

3. incorporate the Protocol for Member Advisory Panels on Planning Matters into the
Constitution in the Code of Good Practice for Councillors and Officers Dealing
With Planning Matters.
REASON:
To ensure that there was a clear and published protocol for Members Advisory Panel
meetings.
224

Leader's annual report on urgent executive decisions
It was noted that there were no urgent key decisions taken in the last year.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
note the report.

225

Acquisition of Ocean Blue, The Esplanade, Exmouth - Process
followed and business case for acquisition
The Service Lead Place, Assets & Commercialisation presented this report that updated
Members on the Council completion of the purchase of Ocean Blue on
4 March 2020; delivered in accordance with the adopted Commercial Investment
Framework.
The investment opportunity was marketed in the summer 2018 and at a time prior to the
Commercial Investment Framework being adopted. The Council’s Deputy Chief
Executive (in post), Leader and Portfolio Holders for Asset Management, Finance and
Economy (at the time) supported an offer being made; subject to the usual due diligence
and Council approvals. Once the Commercial Investment Framework was adopted in
February 2019, the Council then followed the approach set out within.
There were discussions concerning rental income projections re the Covid-19 situation
and that the Queen’s Drive Delivery Group should be included in further discussions,
with their Terms of Reference being used in schemes such as this. In answer to why it
appeared to have taken 7 months for this acquisition to come to Cabinet the Chief
Executive said that this was the only property the Council had required under the
Commercial Investment Framework so there was always a learning process in anything
new to take forward in the future and all steps taken seemed appropriate at the time.
Further discussions included the following:
· For good commercial reasons certain discussions could not have been made
public
· Had Ocean Blue been considered for other uses?
· The need to talk the tenants to compliment other developments along Queen’s
Drive area
· The need to consult with local residents to what their wished for from the building
· A process was followed with ward members being brought in towards the end of
negotiations
· Were in a privilege positon as the ground lease owners which therefore enhanced
its value
· The building was in a key and iconic position on the Exmouth seafront.
· Why were Members not told about the acquisition before the press release was
sent out?
page 61

Cabinet 8 October 2020

·

The need for further discussion around the issues that had been raised.

RESOLVED that Cabinet:
Note the content of the report.
REASON:
to provide enhanced awareness of the detail behind the acquisition.
226

Newton Poppleford & Harpford Neighbourhood Plan Examiner's
Report
The report provided feedback and set out proposed changes following the examination of
the Newton Poppleford & Harpford Neighbourhood Plan. The independent examination
of the Plan had now concluded and the final Examiner’s report received. In accordance
with the relevant legislation, the District Council must consider its response to the
Examiner’s recommendations and also satisfy itself that the Plan meets the necessary
‘basic conditions’.
Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the referendum would be delayed until after May 2021.
However, the publishing of the decision notice itself would give the Plan ‘significant
weight’ in the determination of planning applications in the Newton Poppleford &
Harpford parish area.
The Chairman and Deputy Leader thanked all officers involved in getting this
Neighbourhood Plan to this stage. The Deputy Leader then withdrew from the debate
and vote due to a declaration of interest.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
1. agree the Examiner’s recommendations on the Newton Poppleford & Harpford
Neighbourhood Plan (the Plan);
2. agree that a ‘referendum version’ of the Plan (incorporating the Examiner’s
modifications) should proceed to referendum and a decision notice to this
effect be published, and
3. congratulated the Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group on their hard work.
REASON:
The legislation required a decision notice to be produced at this stage in the process.
The Plan was the product of extensive local consultation and had been recommended to
proceed to referendum by the Examiner subject to modifications which were accepted by
the Parish Council.

Attendance List
Present:
Portfolio Holders
M Armstrong
P Arnott
P Hayward
G Jung
D Ledger
P Millar

Portfolio Holder Sustainable Homes and Communities
Leader
Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder Economy and Assets
Portfolio Holder Coast, Country and Environment
Portfolio Holder Strategic Planning
Portfolio Holder Democracy and Transparency
page 62

Cabinet 8 October 2020

M Rixson
J Rowland
J Loudoun

Cabinet apologies:
J Bailey

Portfolio Holder Climate Action
Portfolio Holder Finance
Portfolio Holder Policy Co-ordination and Regional
Engagement

Portfolio Holder Corporate Services and COVID-19
Response and Recovery

Also present (for some or all the meeting)
Councillor Kevin Blakey
Councillor Susie Bond
Councillor Bruce De Saram
Councillor Alan Dent
Councillor Peter Faithfull
Councillor Steve Gazzard
Councillor Nick Hookway
Councillor Ben Ingham
Councillor Tony McCollum
Councillor Geoff Pook
Councillor Geoff Pratt
Councillor Tony Woodward
Councillor Eileen Wragg
Councillor Sarah Jackson
Councillor Eleanor Rylance
Also present:
Officers:
Tim Child, Service Lead - Place, Assets & Commercialisation
Amanda Coombes, Democratic Services Officer
Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance
Ed Freeman, Service Lead Strategic Planning and Development Management
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment
Henry Gordon Lennox, Strategic Lead Governance and Licensing
Libby Jarrett, Service Lead Revenues and Benefits
Debbie Meakin, Democratic Services Officer
John Symes, Finance Manager
Anita Williams, Principal Solicitor (and Deputy Monitoring Officer)
Mark Williams, Chief Executive

Chairman

Date:

page 63

Agenda Item 9c
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Scrutiny Committee held via the Zoom App on 10
September 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 7.20 pm

78

Public speaking
There were no members of the public wishing to speak.

79

Minutes of the previous meeting
The minutes of the meeting held on 21 May 2020, were agreed as a true record.

80

Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

81

Matters of urgency
There were no matters of urgency.

82

Confidential/exempt item(s)
There were no confidential items.

83

Decisions made by Cabinet called in by Members for scrutiny in
accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules
There were no items called in.

84

Quarterly monitoring of performance - 1st quarter 2020/21 April to
June 2020
Members received the report of Karen Simpkin, Strategic Lead – Organisational
Development and Transformation, presented by Henry Gordon Lennox, Strategic Lead –
Governance and Licensing, which provided performance information and progress
against our performance indicators from across the Council. Members noted that this
cumulative quarterly information will be used to provide an annual review of our
performance against our service and Council Plan in the Annual Report. This information
would provide a clear view of progress against what we said we would deliver in our
council plan and service plans and deal with performance issues arising.
It was noted that the above average number of performance indicators showing concern
was due to the effects of the Covid 19 pandemic. Members wished to congratulate
officers on how well the council had dealt with the effects of the pandemic across East
Devon.
page 64

Scrutiny Committee 10 September 2020

RESOLVED that the report on performance against delivery of the key service
objectives from service plans and performance measures for the 1 st
quarter of 2020-21 be accepted.

85

Car Parking TAFF Membership
Members noted that on 7th November 2019, the Committee agreed to establish a Car
Parking TAFF (as recorded in the minute below) but following changes in political
balance of the Council and membership of the Committee it was necessary for the TAFF
to revise the makeup of this membership.
Minute 40 Establishment of TAFF - Membership
Members discussed the establishment of the membership of the Car
Parking Task and Finish Forum (TAFF).
RESOLVED: that the following be agreed as members of the Car Parking
TAFF:
Alan Dent, Kim Bloxham, Paul Millar, Bruce De Saram, Jack Rowland,
Mike Howe, Eleanor Rylance, Joe Whibley, Val Ranger, Tony Woodward,
Andrew Colman and Maddy Chapman.
The TAFF should be constituted on the basis of political balance of the Council. The
Committee will be asked to confirm the size of the TAFF that it wishes to have going
forward (usually it is a membership of 7) and for delegated authority to be given to the
Monitoring Officer to agree the membership in consultation with the Group Leaders.
Members discussed the size of the membership of the TAFF which had previously been
12 and whether to reduce the size to 10 or 7.
During discussions the following points were noted:
· The need to relook at the terms of reference.
· The possibility of the TAFF investigating, amongst other things the following
issues:
- Tourist tax - how would this work in towns where the seaside car park is also
the shopping car park eg Ham, Sidmouth.
- Town and parish councils – to make contact asking if they wish to take on their
currently free or loss making car parks this year, next year, within 5 years etc?
- Electric hook-ups - cost, income, number, timescale, future proofing. Would
this include planting or greening up space.
- Campervan management in Exmouth - parking overnight on a residents permit
but not sleeping in them, provision of dedicated campervan parking with
additional facilities.
- Cashless and carbon neutral ticketing trial in Exmouth.
- possibility of inviting chamber of commerce reps to the meetings?
· All Councillors would be welcome to attend meetings of the TAFF.
· How long would it take to take to complete its work and what were the key things it
should consider. There was no definitive timeframe for finishing
· Balancing the needs of the budget with the needs of residents.
RESOLVED that the membership of the Car Parking TAFF be 10 Councillors on the
basis of political balance and delegated authority be given to the Monitoring Officer to
agree the membership in consultation with the Group Leaders.
page 65

Scrutiny Committee 10 September 2020

86

Forward Plan
Members considered a Scrutiny Forward Plan proposal form received from Cllr Mike
Allen on Review of Poverty reduction actions by EDDC in 2020 to date.
During discussions the following points were noted:
· The first meeting of the Poverty Working Group had been arranged for Monday 12
October.
· The Scrutiny proposal from Cllr Allen required a look back on what the Council
had done so far, what had worked and what needed to be looked at further.
· Importance of not duplicating the wok of the Poverty Working Group.
· Possible increase in unemployment and poverty following the withdrawal of the
Furlough scheme in the coming months.
· The meeting of the Cabinet on 30th September would be considering a report on
the recovery work undertaken by the Council and this would include covering the
poverty agenda.
Members also noted that a Scrutiny Proposal Form for items had been received from Cllr
Peter Faithfull on feedback for elections. This had been received after the issuing of the
agenda for this meeting but would be considered for scoping at the next meeting of the
Committee.
RESOLVED: that the Scrutiny Forward Plan proposal form received from Cllr Mike Allen
on Review of Poverty reduction actions by EDDC in 2020 to date be passed
for scoping by the Monitoring Officer, Henry Gordon Lennox.

Attendance List
Councillors present:
C Brown (Chairman)
V Ranger (Vice-Chairman)
E Rylance
M Chapman
V Johns
F King
H Parr
B Taylor
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
M Armstrong
P Arnott
J Bailey
D Bickley
P Hayward
N Hookway
G Jung
P Millar
M Rixson
Officers in attendance:
Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment
Henry Gordon Lennox, Strategic Lead Governance and Licensing
page 66

Scrutiny Committee 10 September 2020

Susan Howl, Democratic Services Manager
Sarah Jenkins, Democratic Services Officer
Christopher Lane, Democratic Services Officer
Anita Williams, Principal Solicitor (and Deputy Monitoring Officer)
Councillor apologies:
A Colman
S Hawkins
T McCollum
P Jarvis
A Moulding
G Pratt
T Wright

Chairman

Date:

page 67

Agenda Item 9d
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Overview Committee held at Online via the Zoom
App. All Councillors and registered speakers will have been sent an
appointment with the meeting link. on 24 September 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 8.16 pm

59

Public Speaking
There were no members of the public wishing to speak.
The Chairman advised that a letter had been received from a resident, Mr Stephen
Pemberton, regarding the Sidmouth beach management plan, Pennington Point and
East Beach. Mr Pemberton having agreed, the letter was read out by a Democratic
Services Officer and expressed the following views:
 It appeared that EDDC had little or no intention of doing what was needed for
Sidmouth
 Sidmouth residents had been silenced
 There was a lack of progress and accountability by EDDC
 The administration had been led by EDDC Senior Officer views
 The priority was the hole at Pennington Point exacerbated by the erosion along
East Beach
 Revetment and rock island(s) were required for Pennington Point and East Beach
It was agreed to consider the matter under the Forward Plan.

60

Minutes of the previous meeting
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 27 February 2020 were approved and
signed as a correct record.

61

Declarations of interest
Minute 64. Update on referral from the Cabinet meeting 21 July 2020.
Councillor Andrew Moulding, Personal, Patron of Arc.
Minute 64. Update on referral from the Cabinet meeting 21 July 2020.
Councillor Ian Hall, Personal, Devon County Councillor, DCC Mental Health Champion,
Vice-Chairman of the Trustees of Arc, Chair of Cloakham Lawns Sports Centre.

62

Matters of urgency
There were no matters of urgency.

63

Confidential/exempt item(s)
There were no items to be dealt with in this way.
page 68

Overview Committee 24 September 2020

64

Update on referral from the Cabinet meeting 21 July 2020
At the previous meeting the Committee had debated motions in support of the Local
Authority Mental Health Challenge and the Healthy Weight Declaration. Notes to
summarise and supplement the debate, with recommendations for the Committee to
approve, had been circulated.
Andrew Ennis, Service Lead Environmental Health and Car Parks, presented the notes
on the Local Authority Mental Health Challenge and highlighted the range of
commitments and expertise which would be required, some of which was beyond
existing resources and budgets.
Members discussed the following points:
 The prevalence of mental health problems was significant and likely to worsen as
a result of the Covid-19 pandemic
 44 other District Councils had Mental Health Champions and had signed the
Challenge
 Cabinet was being asked at its next meeting to consider the re-introduction of a
limited number of Member Champions, including a Mental Health Champion and
this was supported by the Committee
 There was support for the appointment of a dedicated Officer to engage with local
communities
 There was a need to ensure that poor mental health did not become mental illness
 The Council needed a robust framework to safeguard the mental health of all
Members and Officers
 Members noted the recommendation to Cabinet of the Housing Review Board to
approve the need for the recruitment of a specialist Mental Health Support Officer
to work within the housing services team
Cllr Hall proposed the following recommendations to Cabinet which were seconded by
Cllr de Saram and RESOLVED:
RECOMMENDATIONS:
1. That Cabinet notes that our Public Health Strategic Plan already recognises the
importance of mental as well as physical health
2. That during the Covid-recovery phase we continue to work with our partners within
existing parameters
3. That Cabinet notes that specialist skill sets are required for mental health
interventions; this is the role of the Devon Partnership Trust and other agencies.
EDDC does not have dedicated or experienced officer resource for mental health
4. As an interim measure to ensure that Members and Officers are signposted to
appropriate support if necessary
5. That surveys are sent to Members and Officers to capture information on the
current state of mental health
6. That Cabinet is requested to consider appointing a lead Officer for mental health
in the organisation in conjunction with the request for a mental health Officer from
the housing service and that Cabinet agrees the recommendation to appoint a
Member Champion for mental health
7. That bespoke training for Members and Officers be provided on mental health.
page 69

Overview Committee 24 September 2020

It was noted during the course of the meeting that the minutes would be added as a late
item to the agenda for the Cabinet meeting of 30 September 2020.
Andrew Ennis presented the notes on the Healthy Weight Declaration and outlined the
14 commitments which would be required should the Council sign up to the Declaration.
It was noted that, to date, only County Councils had signed up to the Declaration.
Cllr de Saram proposed the following recommendations to Cabinet which were seconded
by Cllr Gazzard and RESOLVED:
RECOMMENDATIONS:
1. That Cabinet notes the contribution that our activities identified in our Public
Health Strategic Plan make towards encouraging healthy weight
2. That during the Covid-recovery phase we continue to work with our partners within
existing parameters
3. That Cabinet recognises that our partners’ priorities are also changing in response
to Covid-recovery
4. That Cabinet notes that our current priorities do not offer us the scope to afford
additional resourcing at this time, but that this is reviewed after six months
It was agreed that the Healthy Weight Declaration be added to the Forward Plan in order
to keep the matter under review.

65

Forward Plan
With regard to the Forward Plan, the Committee discussed the following:
Next meeting
The meeting on 12 November 2020 would consider the Draft Financial Strategy 20212031 and an update on the High Street TAFF and Our Towns Scheme.
Sidmouth Beach Management Plan
In response to the letter from Mr Stephen Pemberton, Cllr Jung advised the following:
 Cllr Jung had been engaged in correspondence with Mr Pemberton who had
declined offers to meet and discuss the Sidmouth beach management plan
 EDDC had provided reassurances that it was progressing with the beach
management plan
 Interested groups had attended forum meetings and had expressed their views
 EDDC had conferred with the Environment Agency regarding the recent cliff fall
and noted that the works could not be classed as emergency works
 The cost of installing off shore islands as requested would be prohibitive
Economic recovery plan
Cllr Moulding proposed that an economic impact assessment of the Covid-19 pandemic
be added to the Forward Plan as an urgent item.
page 70

Overview Committee 24 September 2020

In response, Cllr Arnott advised that a Devon County Council Officer had been tasked
with economic recovery. Following the statement by the Chancellor of the Exchequer
earlier in the day, Cllr Arnott had written to Officers for an assessment of the business
support which had been announced.
Assisted housing needs
Cllr Hall proposed that the provision of assisted housing units be added to the Forward
Plan. This topic would require scoping.
Proposal form and scoping template
The Committee discussed the use of a proposal form and scoping template to assist with
future work programming and to ensure that the right work would come forward at the
right time whilst using resources as effectively as possible. Use of the forms could be
reviewed at a future date.
Governance Review working party
It was noted that work on the Governance Review had been suspended due to the
Covid-19 pandemic and agreed that this item should be retained on the Forward Plan.
The Forward Plan was noted.

Attendance List
Councillors present:
N Hookway (Chairman)
V Johns (Vice-Chairman)
B De Saram
I Hall
M Hartnell
F King
T Woodward
K Blakey
S Bond
S Jackson
S Gazzard
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
P Arnott
C Brown
P Faithfull
G Jung
P Millar
A Moulding
Officers in attendance:
Andrew Ennis, Service Lead Environmental Health and Car Parks
Henry Gordon Lennox, Strategic Lead Governance and Licensing
Andrew Hancock, Service Lead StreetScene
page 71

Overview Committee 24 September 2020

Susan Howl, Democratic Services Manager
Sarah Jenkins, Democratic Services Officer
Debbie Meakin, Democratic Services Officer
Shirley Shaw, Planning Barrister
Councillor apologies:
M Allen
V Ranger

Chairman

Date:

page 72

Public Document Pack

Agenda Item 9e

EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Housing Review Board held online via the Zoom
app on 17 September 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 2.30 pm and ended at 6.05 pm

63

Public speaking
There were no matters raised by the public.

64

Appointment of Vice Chairman
The Chairman welcomed all those present to the meeting. He welcomed Jo Garfoot,
Acting Housing Service Lead, as maternity cover for Amy Gilbert-Jeans to the meeting.
Jo thanked the Chair and introduced herself.
Nominations for Vice Chairman were received for co-opted tenant member Peter
Sullivan.
RESOLVED: that tenant representative Peter Sullivan be appointed Vice Chairman of
the Board for the ensuing year.

65

Minutes of the previous meeting
The minutes of the Housing Review Board meeting held on 23 January 2020 were
confirmed as a true record.

66

Declarations of interest
Sarah Chamberlain: Personal interest – works for Exeter City Council in the assets
department as a surveyor for compliance.
Cindy Collier: Personal interest – housing tenant.
Ian Hall: Personal interest – mother is a housing tenant and he is a Devon County
Councillor.
Christine Morrison: Personal interest – housing tenant.
Peter Sullivan: Personal interest – housing tenant.

67

Matters of urgency
There were no matters of urgency raised at the meeting.

68

Confidential/exempt item(s)
There were no confidential or exempt items.

69

Housing Review Board forward plan
The Housing Service Lead presented the forward plan and advised members that the
forward plan acted as a reminder of agenda items to come forward to future meetings.
page 73
1

Housing Review Board 17 September 2020

Members were reminded that they could add further issues to the next forward plan by
informing either herself of the Democratic Services Officer.
The Portfolio Holder for Strategic Planning informed the Board that the Government had
recently announced £12 billion funding to support decarbonisation. There was £12 billion
Government funding available for a five year affordable housing programme. It was
suggested that there was housing land available at First Avenue, Millway Rise,
Axminster. The Housing Service Lead advised that this would be added to the forward
plan for a report to be brought to the November Board meeting.
RESOLVED: that the forward plan be noted and updated to include a report on the
Government’s five year affordable housing programme.
70

Update on integrated asset management contract
The Chairman welcomed Kate Green, General Manager and Arron Kelly, Business
Manager from Ian Williams Ltd to the meeting. The Board were asked to note progress
that was being made with the Integrated Asset Management Contract, which
commenced in July 2019, and reviewed the partnership with Ian Williams Ltd over the
last year.
In January 2020 the Board received an update identifying a number of areas that were
being monitored very closely in order to work towards improved performance. Since that
time intense work had been carried out and was continuing with a number of officers
focusing on all elements of the contract to continually seek improvements with both the
day to day management and performance of the contract.
Kate Green reported that operations this year had not been business as usual and they
had had to deal with an array of issues. There were daily update calls between EDDC
and Ian Williams Ltd and good progress was being made with staffing. EDDC had
employed a permanent contract manager and the structure was continually being
reviewed. The Covid-19 pandemic had caused some operational works to be scaled
back, but the contract still endeavoured to offer as much of a service as possible.
It was noted that the voids service had been difficult during the first half of the contract
year, with the service taking a dip, but there was now an action plan in place which was
working well. The General Manager acknowledged that there had been some
performance issues at the start of the contract, but that they were now in a good position
for moving the contract forward, with both parties recognising that some adjustments
were required.
Members had expressed concern at the January HRB meeting but were now greatly
encouraged to see the relationship between EDDC and Ian Williams improving. Concern
was expressed that there was no longer a dedicated handyman and Ian Williams were
asked what was being done to address this. Kate Green replied that they were trying to
recruit someone, but that it was proving difficult due to the current social restrictions.
They had a duty of care to tenants and operational teams to reduce the amount to time
they spent in tenants’ homes. The handyman role was more than just a ‘fixer’ and it was
important that the post was permanently filled by the right person. The role combined
maintenance care as well as a social service.
It was reported that a cost review of voids was being carried out independently by
Echelon. Voids had been tendered for as price per void, based on some historical data.
page 74
2

Housing Review Board 17 September 2020

The KPI used was length of time taken. An openbook financial review of the first year of
the contract was being undertaken and the results were due any day. The results of this
12 month review would be published and it was agreed that a further update report on
the contract would be brought back to the November Board meeting.
Members also queried how customer satisfaction would be measured. They were
reassured that the customer care process was being refined and reviewed and that the
paper format would be reintroduced, as well as using the contractors’ iPads to submit
feedback. Hub advisors would also call tenants for feedback following work undertaken.
RESOLVED: that the Housing Review Board note the progress being made with the
integrated asset management contract that commenced in July 2019.
71

Disrepair
The solicitor gave a presentation to the Board about disrepair and potential legal
challenges to the condition of housing stock by tenants through a number of litigious
lawyer firms. He outlined why disrepair was such an important area of work for the
Housing Service, ensuring that there was an understanding amongst officers and
managers that disrepair needed to be prioritised. Ongoing work was required to reduce
and manage future cases.
The solicitor explained the legal meaning of disrepair and why disrepair was so topical
now. He outlined the litigation process including the pre-action protocol, and set out
good practice so that the Council could successfully defend claims by being proactive
with tenants. This included every officer asking a tenant about any disrepair in their
property when they made contact with the service.
The solicitor advised that the service needed to have policies, procedures and processes
in place and that Legal Services had provided a series of training sessions given by
Trowers and Hamlins Solicitors to all staff.
RESOLVED: that the Board note the report.

72

Advantage South West - renewal of subscription
The Housing Service Lead outlined the advantages of being a member of Advantage
South West, which EDDC benefitted most through procurement and the significant
financial savings it allowed. Another huge advantage was the opportunity to work with
other housing providers. It was reported that provision for the subscription had already
been included within the current year’s budget. Members were asked to note the
benefits of membership of Advantage South West and to support continuing membership
of the organisation.
RECOMMENDED: that Cabinet approve that the Council continue paying the annual
subscription to maintain the membership to Advantage South West.

73

Air source heat pumps
The Compliance Surveyor presented the Strategic Lead – Housing, Health and
Environment’s report which considered an element of the Council’s carbon footprint
page 75
3

Housing Review Board 17 September 2020

relating to its housing stock. It related to the prevalence of fossil fuel heating systems
and proposed a programme of installing air source heat pumps, building on a pilot
programme undertaken in Rodney Close, Exmouth in 2017, which had received some
very positive feedback from tenants living in those properties.
The forthcoming stock condition survey would confirm the reliance of fossil fuel heating
systems for Council homes and using this data officers would be able to formulate and
deliver programmes of boiler replacement and associated energy efficiency measures
designed to reduce the service’s carbon footprint, consistent with the Council’s ambition.
It was proposed that approximately £150,000 of the £500,000 annual boiler replacement
programme be set aside to initiate a programme of mainstreaming the installation of air
source hear pumps in the Council’s housing stock, delivering 15 installations. There
would be some procurement advantages of using a framework. An external funding
application had also been made for the Green Homes Grant which was a government
initiative that had set aside £50 million to encourage retrofitting of existing properties.
RECOMMENDED: that Cabinet approve the continued use and installation of air source
heat pumps as a viable carbon efficient alternative to conventional boilers.
74

Advantage South West - recruitment and skills project
The Housing Service Lead’s report set out the opportunity for the Council to contribute
towards a collaborative project being run by Advantage South West to fund and recruit a
member of staff to co-ordinate and deliver an improvement in the South West housing
sector’s ability to attract staff. It was hoped to work with other members to pro-actively
encourage and retain highly skilled staff within the housing sector through shared
initiatives and training and development programmes. It would also encourage
engagement with schools and colleges to promote the benefits of a career in housing in
order to build a workforce for the future. It was noted that the initiative would only go
ahead if enough organisations signed up to the project.
RECOMMENDED: that Cabinet approve the participation in the initiative at an indicative
cost of £3000 per annum for three years.

75

Climate change action plan
The Housing Service Lead presented a report summarising the work to be undertaken by
the housing service in response to the Council’s commitment to carbon reduction and
increased energy efficiency.
As an organisation EDDC had committed to achieve carbon neutrality by 2040 and
endorsed the Climate Change Strategy and associated action plan to facilitate this.
There was a need to ensure sufficient resources were in place to achieve the aims set
out in the plan. At present there was not the capacity or expertise in the housing service
so it was recommended that an additional Programmed Works Officer be recruited to
focus on energy efficiency measures and drive forward an improvement programme for
the housing stock.
RECOMMENDED: that the Housing Review Board recommend to Cabinet that:
1. Members agree to the climate strategy actions detailed in the report.
2. Members endorse the cultural shift required to move to a carbon neutral housing
service within 20 years.
page 76
4

Housing Review Board 17 September 2020

3. Approval is given for the need for an additional Programme Works Officer who will
focus on energy efficiency measures and drive forward the programme for
improvements to the housing stock, with additional funding being designated from
the Housing Revenue Account.
76

Regulator's review: Neighbourhood & Community Standard - self
assessment
The Board considered the report of the Housing Services Manager which explained the
need to undertake a self-assessment of current service delivery against the
Neighbourhood and Community Standard as set out within the Social Housing
Regulator’s Homes Standard. This was to ensure the housing service was meeting all
regulatory requirements as set out by the Regulator of Social Housing. The
Neighbourhood and Community Standard set out the minimum requirements for what
must be achieved in terms of neighbourhood management, local area co-operation and
how the service dealt with antisocial behaviour, so that safe and clean areas where
tenants lived could be provided.
Overall the housing service performed well against the standards, however it was doing
less well in its response to anti-social behaviour (ASB). It was felt that a review of
current requirements and processes was needed as well as an improvement in
communication with tenants. The Housing Services Manager reported that she would be
undertaking this as a priority. Concern was expressed that other housing providers dealt
with ASB differently and it was suggested that all housing providers should get together
and look at best practice.
RESOLVED: that the Housing Review Board note the contents of the self-assessment
document as set out within the report.

77

Covid-19 housing recovery
The Housing Service Lead’s report contained the housing extract from the corporate
report that outlined details of actions taken across EDDC to respond to the Covid-19
pandemic. It provided a high level summary of future recovery actions. A detailed
organisation-wide recovery plan was work in progress in conjunction with Devon County
Council and would be submitted to Cabinet once complete.
As part of recovery planning the housing leadership team met on a weekly basis to coordinate recovery across the service ensuring consistency and the adoption of guidance
that continued to cascade from central government. The housing service had four key
priority areas, with a series of actions under each one:
 Keeping residents safe
 Protecting residents income and livelihoods
 Sustaining critical services
 Supporting communities and recovery
There had been a huge amount of focus on communication with tenants and well-being
calls had been made to every single resident across all of the housing stock, and officers
had been able to assist tenants with a huge range of problems. It was noted that rental
income continued to remain high, but there was a need to very mindful over the next few
months and tenants were proactively encouraged to contact the housing service early if
they anticipated or were experiencing problems.
page 77
5

Housing Review Board 17 September 2020

Members congratulated the Housing Service Lead and housing teams and thanked them
for everything they were doing to support tenants. Members were concerned that
Council staff were also being supported and surveyed on their health and well-being
during the pandemic. The Housing Service Lead reassured the Board that there had
been a large focus on the health and well-being of officers and that all staff had been
requested to complete a survey by the Strategic Lead - Organisational Development and
Transformation, with a generally positive outcome.
RESOLVED: that the Housing Review Board note the continued work of the housing
service in relation to the response to Covid-19 as well as ongoing work that is being
undertaken to recover the service.
78

Finance report to end August 2020
The accountant’s report provided the Housing Review Board with the current position to
the end of August 2020 and details of the year end forecast of the draft Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) for 2020/21. The HRA showed the main areas of anticipated
income and expenditure on landlord activities for the year ahead and highlighted to the
Board areas of change and items of note. The report also provided the position of the
HRA capital programme for both affordable housing and other capital items outside of
the HRA.
At the end of the 2019/20 financial year the HRA was in £960,000 surplus. This
combined with the HRA volatility reserve equated to a total of £3.6 million available
reserves to deal with the Covid-19 impact, if necessary. During the year end close down
due to the onset of Covid-19 the decision was made to utilise all capital reserves ahead
of the more flexible revenue reserves where possible.
The Board noted the collection rate and income levels, which were materially consistent
with the previous year, with the impact of Covid-19 being largely mitigated. There had
been an underspend to date, primarily due to Covid-19 impacting the Council’s ability to
carry out certain types of work which were not currently possible with Covid-19
requirement and work restrictions. The report proposed the reallocation of work and
reorganisation of the planned maintenance programme, primarily moving budgets from
areas considered difficult to undertake during Covid-19 to those which by their nature
would be less impacted by working restrictions.
The Board were warned of the risk of having to return right to buy receipts, although the
Government had currently granted a six-month extension for the period of when
development or acquisition of properties was not possible. It was hoped that this
extension would be increased. The Housing Service Lead reassured members that
officers were constantly looking at opportunities but it was important to look at what was
realistically affordable and achievable and to balance this against other priorities, such as
ensuring properties were compliant and safe, as well as the challenges and cost that
related to decarbonising the stock. The Portfolio Holder for Sustainable Homes and
Communities raised the point that she was setting up a Housing Portfolio working group
that would debate and consider these issues and help provide direction on the best way
forward.
It was noted that the Council had made an application for £500,000 of government grant
funding for reducing the carbon footprint of a selection of council properties. The final
allocation list of awarded grants would be announcded on 28 September 2020.
page 78
6

Housing Review Board 17 September 2020

RECOMMENDED: that Cabinet agree the budget reallocations within the report, note
the impact assessments and approve the report on the Housing Revenue Account
financial position to end of August 2020.
79

Stock condition survey
The Housing Service Lead updated and informed the Housing Review Board on the
current position and proposal for the delivery of the stock condition survey previously
authorised. There were a multiple number of reasons contained within the report why it
was critical that the Council undertook this as the current data was out of date. An up to
date stock condition survey was a vital element in the asset management strategy, which
should underpin the financial business plan and all the financial decision making. 100%
of the Council’s housing stock would be surveyed. It was noted that in future there would
be a five year rolling programme so that information was always up to date. There was
£75,000 in the current year’s budget for the stock condition survey with additional
amounts available within the planned maintenance reserve to call upon if required within
the year.
RECOMMENDED: that Cabinet approve the delivery of the stock condition survey by an
external consultant sourced through an approved procurement framework.

80

Formal complaints
The Housing Service Manager’s report provided the Board with information on formal
complaints received in relation to the housing service for the period April 2019 – March
2020. Formal complaints were monitored carefully, using them to learn from and
improve services wherever possible.
At present the Housing Service dealt with formal complaints through the corporate
complaints two stage process:
 Stage 1 complaints considered by the Strategic Lead
 Stage 2 complaints considered by the Deputy Chief Executive/Monitoring
Officer
If customers were still not satisfied they could take their complaint to the Housing
Ombudsman. They could do this by waiting eight weeks from the date of the Council’s
final response letter and then approaching the Housing Ombudsman themselves, or by
contacting a Designated Person. The Designated Person could be an MP, a local district
councillor, or the Designated Tenant Complaints Panel (DTCP), which was a group of
tenants supported by an administrative officer and the Housing Services Manager. Most
of the complainants who chose to contact a Designated Person chose the Designated
Tenant Complaints Panel, favouring the view of their peers in terms of reviewing the
council’s decision on their case.
Tenants were given information about how complaints were dealt with in general in the
Annual Report to tenants each October.
The Housing Services Manager reported that between April 2019 and March 2020, 52
formal housing complaints were received. 15 of these went on from stage 1 to stage 2.
It was agreed that better communication was needed from Housing Officers in
responding to queries from tenants to effectively manage customer expectations. Failure
page 79
7

Housing Review Board 17 September 2020

to do this caused customers to complain again, and the focus then moved to dealing with
complaints rather than delivery of the service.
Details of the areas of complaints were given in the report. It was noted that there had
been an increase in more complex antisocial behaviour complaints since the easing of
lockdown restrictions. A new Ombudsman code of conduct was being consulted on and
code produced. Landlords were being asked to self-assess against the code by 31
December 2020. It was advocated that the ‘designated person’ provision be removed
from the complaints processes, but that ‘designated complaints panels’ be kept, although
not as a mandatory part of the process.
Members asked for clarity on when the new code would come into place and also
expressed concern over the removal of the ‘designated person’. The Housing Services
Manager replied that the new code would come into effect from 1 January 2021.
RECOMMENDED: that Cabinet approve:
1. that the Housing Leadership Team re-iterate the importance of outstanding
customer care, considering additional training and awareness opportunities where
appropriate.
2. that the Housing Operational Managers group reviews processes to ensure they
are effectively co-ordinating responses and updates on formal complaints and
councillor enquiries raised with them.
3. that the Housing Services Manager works with the council’s Information and
Complaints Officer, and customers on the Designated Tenant Complaints Panel,
to self-assess against the ombudsman’s new code by 31 December 2020.
4. that the Housing Services Manager ensures that better communication is given
from Housing Officers in responding to queries from tenants to effectively manage
expectations of customers.
RESOLVED: that the Housing Review Board note the contents of the report.
81

Sailor's Rest, Exmouth - allocations and management
The report of the Housing Solutions Manager sought the Board’s approval of the policy
that determined the allocations and management procedures of the properties known as
18A and 18B St. Andrews Road, Exmouth.
A decision to use the properties as temporary accommodation or move on
accommodation for homeless applicants who had been placed in temporary
accommodation was made by Cabinet in May 2020 in response to the homeless crisis
and huge increase in the need to accommodate people as a temporary measure as a
result of the Covid-19 pandemic. It had since been decided that move on
accommodation was the preferred option, providing a stable accommodation
arrangement for homeless applicants and also freeing up the existing temporary
accommodation resources for new homeless approaches. This had been brought in for
an undetermined period of time and would go some way to alleviate the pressure on the
Council’s homelessness budget in the general fund as well as providing income of the
Housing Revenue Account. It was hoped that it would significantly reduce the use of
emergency accommodation, including bed and breakfast.

page 80
8

Housing Review Board 17 September 2020

RECOMMENDED: that Cabinet approve the policy to provide support and clarity to the
allocation and management process for the flats at 18A and 18B St. Andrews Road,
Exmouth, whilst they are being used as move on accommodation.
82

Structure of the housing service
The Housing Service Lead’s report gave an overview of some of the changes to the
housing structure and how these had been implemented over the past few months. The
detail in the report set out the reasoning got for the changes and included a new
structure chart for the housing service. This was an objective of the housing service plan
2020/21.
It was noted that Landlord Services had been renamed Housing Services. The area
generally dealt with all of the living in and support services and included the rentals team,
mobile support officers, estate management, community development, tenant
participation and the Home Safeguard service. The Landlord Services Manager title had
changed to Housing Services Manager.
The service recognised a growing demand on mental health and as a result it was
proposed to recruit into the Housing Services Team a mental health specialist support
worker. This would directly address some of the issues being highlighted in the
forthcoming Mental Health Strategy. Further consideration into the new role was
required.
The report detailed further changes to the Housing Service Structure and areas where
review was ongoing. The structure would be kept under constant review. It was vital to
ensure the right resources were in place to drive projects forward at the pace required.
RECOMMENDED:
1. that Cabinet note the changes to the structure and approve the need for the
recruitment of a specialist Mental Health Support Officer to work within the
housing services team.
2. that Cabinet approve additional funding (£37,500 – Grade 6 with associated costs)
is designated from the Housing Revenue Account.

83

Housing performance management
The Housing Review Board was presented with the Housing Service performance
indicator report for quarter 1 2020/21, with details of selected indicators measuring
performance across the Housing Service. An example of the latest weekly Covid-19
report, which had been monitoring different areas of the service since March 2020, had
also been included for the Board’s information.
RESOLVED: that the Housing Review Board note the performance of the Housing
Service.

84

Expression of thanks
At the end of the meeting various Board members, the Chair and the Portfolio Holder
Sustainable Homes and Communities all expressed their thanks to the Housing teams
for everything they had achieved during the last few difficult months. They wished Jo
Garfoot well in her new role and gave their best wishes to Amy Gilbert-Jeans on the
forthcoming arrival of her baby
page 81
9

Housing Review Board 17 September 2020

Attendance List
Board members present:
Councillor Tony McCollum (Chairman)
Peter Sullivan, Tenant
Councillor Ian Hall
Cindy Collier, Tenant
Christine Morrison, Tenant
Councillor Sarah Chamberlain
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
M Armstrong
P Arnott
S Gazzard
G Jung
D Ledger
P Millar
E Rylance
Officers in attendance:
Sue Bewes, Housing Services Manager
Natalie Brown, Information and Analysis Officer (Housing)
Michelle Davidson, Property and Asset Management
Amy Gilbert-Jeans, Service Lead Housing
Wendy Harris, Democratic Services Officer
Rebecca Heal, Solicitor
Debbie Meakin, Democratic Services Officer
Andrew Mitchell, Housing Solutions Manager
Giles Salter, Solicitor
John Symes, Finance Manager
Alethea Thompson, Democratic Services Officer
Jo Garfoot, Acting Housing Service Lead
Kerry Spittle, Housing Contracts Manager, Property and Asset Team
Kate Green, General Manager, Ian Williams Ltd
Arron Kelly, Business Manager, Ian Williams Ltd
Councillor apologies:
Christine Drew, Independent Community Representative
Cat Summers, Tenant
Councillor Helen Parr
Councillor Brenda Taylor

Chairman

Date:

page 82
10

Disrepair
page 83
11

Housing Review Board
17th September 2020

Minute Item 71

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Introduction to Disrepair

Introduction

page 84
12



Why disrepair?



Definition of disrepair-s11 Landlord and Tenant Act 1985



Pre-action protocol



Defences



Access



Avoiding disrepair claims



Homes (Fitness for habitation) Act 2018

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Disrepair-Why now?



page 85
13



End of Personal Injury Fixed costs
End of Payment Protection Insurance
(PPI) claims



Grenfell Tower



New legislation from 2018
www.eastdevon.gov.uk

S 11 Landlord and Tenant Act 1985



page 86
14






Section 11 of the Landlord and
Tenant Act 1985 implies an absolute
and non-excludable obligation upon
landlords to carry out basic repairs
Keep in repair
Dwelling house
Installations in the dwelling house
Structure and exterior
www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Picture 1

page 87
15

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Picture 2

page 88
16

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Picture 3

page 89
17

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Picture 4

page 90
18

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Picture 5

page 91
19

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Picture 6

page 92
20

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Picture 7

page 93
21

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Picture 8

page 94
22

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Picture 9

page 95
23

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

How does EDDC know about
disrepair?

page 96
24



A good tenant reports disrepair!



Through our officers and contractors



Letter from a solicitor


Letter of claim-setting out internal disrepair
seeking compensation, special damages,
legal costs £££ £££ £££
www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Liability for disrepair



page 97
25





Landlord cannot be liable unless they have
been given notice of the defect(s) (internal)
Requirement for notice does not apply to the
common parts and exterior of the building
NB s4 Defective Premises Act 1972-covers
the communal areas of blocks of flats


Duty to “take such care that is reasonable in all
circumstances”
www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Condensation & Mould





page 98
26






No claim for pure condensation if due to tenant’s
lifestyle.
However, if structural defect is causing condensation
then it falls within the landlord’s obligations
Tenants must use the heating properly
No obligation to install or improve a heating system
The same applies to insulation and ventilation
However, if Landlord removes heating then he will be
responsible for impact and it must be replaced.

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

The Disrepair Claim-Legal
Framework



page 99
27






Pre-action Protocol-Housing Disrepair
 Letter of claim
 Instruct an Expert
 Issue proceedings (Claim & Particulars)
Contested trial
 DEFENCE, Allocation, Case Management
Conference
 Trial
Settlement Part 36 Offer Civil Procedure Rules OR
Calderbank Letter- Repairs under £1000

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Disrepair within Rent Arrears
proceedings- Counterclaims



page 28
100





Tactic used to off-set compensation against
rent arrears removing ground for possession
Beware of low rent arrears possession claims
where condition of property is questioned
If Counterclaim is raised you MUST respond
by filing and serving a Reply to Defence and
Defence to Counterclaim

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Defence and Mitigation

Defects not within s11 L&T 1985



No notice given by tenant



Repairs carried out within reasonable time

page 29
101








Depends on nature of the repair

The tenant caused the problem
Limitation period-date of last claim
www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Defence and Mitigation




page 30
102



Regard to age, character and locality of
premises
Tenant must use premises in a tenant like
manner eg failure to keep dwelling warm
Failure/refusal to allow access
Tenant’s failure to mitigate their loss



Failure to do minor repairs

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Access for Landlord to survey



Written request for access within 14 days of
letter of claim.

page 31
103



Letter before action-reference for disrepair.



Apply for an Injunction.



Bring possession proceedings (last resort).

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

What do we know about our
Tenant?



Equality Act 2010
Protected characteristics?

page 32
104



Mental Capacity Act 2005
Do they have capacity to make the claim?




Rent Arrears?
Breaches of tenancy?
eg Have they entered roof space?

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Policy, Procedure, Process



page 33
105





Stock Condition Survey every 5 years-Know
your stock!
Every officer is a Repairs officer-Ask if there
are issues in the property- Rent, Estates
Management, MSOs etc,
Educate your contractors gas and repairseyes and ears. They probably have more
access than we do! Get feedback!
www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Policy, Procedure, Process contd




page 34
106





Monitor contractors performance=KPIs
Deal with access issues and liaise with
appropriate officers concerning gas safety
access-Injunction if necessary
Check Voids - Inspect all works carried out,
ensure “snagging lists” are completed and
signed off.
Consider photographs of each property at
sign-up, mutual exchange- eg boiler lights,
window surrounds, ceilings
www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Policy, Procedure, Process contd




page 35
107



Difference between Interior and Exterior
Exterior-Disrepair-the Council is “on
notice”- visible from the curtilage. We
have Estates Management Officers,
MSOs, Contractors and Agents
attending on our behalf
Interior- Must obtain permission to
view allegations- “ breach of covenant
of quiet enjoyment” or Injunction
www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Policy, Procedure, Process contd




page 36
108





Good communication within the service
Ensure easy access to repairs records- must
be up to date and clear. Detail!!!!!
Deal with issues expeditiously- within 5
working days.
Disrepair claims take priority-delay leads to
costs!
www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Our Response-Dos and Don’ts




page 37
109








DO NOT ignore notice/warning letters
DO diarise the dates by which you are
expected to respond to warning letters
DO NOT assume that the defects amount to
statutory disrepair
DO inspect the property as soon as possible
DO carry out works that will resolve the
disrepair/abate any statutory nuisance
Document advice given to tenant.
www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Our Response-Dos and Don’ts




page 38
110






Do keep detailed records
Do liaise with Legal Services-early
instructions
Do access the property at the earliest
opportunity. Prepare an internal Housing
Surveyor’s report-Cost Repairs earlyDo prepare a Scott Schedule
Do question assertions and assumptions
made by Claimant’s Expert Witness.
www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Homes (Fitness for Human Habitation) Act
2018
page 39
111

Now fully in force!

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Landlord’s obligations

page 40
112

“The dwelling must be fit for human
habitation at the start of and for the
duration of the tenancy.”
New s9A implied covenant dwelling is fit
for human habitation-can’t contract out.
Updates and extends LL’s obligations
under s11 of L&T1985.
www.eastdevon.gov.uk

S10 H(FHH) Act 2018



page 41
113





Factors when assessing whether a
claim is fit for human habitation
pursuant to section 10 L&T 1985
Act. The salient (not exhaustive) points
are:
Repair
Stability
Whether damp is present (NB Cavity
wall insulation, any condensation)
www.eastdevon.gov.uk

S10 H(FHH) Act 2018 contd




page 42
114





Internal arrangement-occupation-use of
living accommodation
Natural lighting
Ventilation
Water supply
Drainage/sanitary conveniences

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

S10 H(FHH) Act 2018 contd




page 43
115

Facilities for food prep, disposal of
waste water
England- Housing Act 2004 Health &
Safety Regs (HHSR)-prescribed
hazards

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Tenants’ Rights



page 44
116

Gives T a ‘cause of action’ if
home/building contains a hazard which
presents a risk to their health or
wellbeing at start of and throughout the
life of the tenancy.

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Conclusion




page 45
117




Potential floodgates for legal claims
No current case law-lawyers will want to
test this!
Assess the risk
Policy, Procedure, Process

www.eastdevon.gov.uk

Agenda Item 9f
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Strategic Planning Committee held at Online via
the zoom app on 16 September 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 2.00 pm and ended at 4.05 pm

54

Public speaking
A Democratic Services Officer read out a brief statement from Councillor Copus,
Chairman of the Planning Committee of Ottery St Mary Town Council which read as
follows:
As Chairman of the Planning Committee of Ottery St Mary Town Council the Council’s
views on the Planning White Paper were made clear in the minutes of the last Planning
Committee and the local press. Our council’s chief concern is the lack of democratic
accountability that the White Paper proposes. I would strongly ask the District Council to
write to our MP asking him to fully address this matter.

55

Minutes of the previous meeting
The minutes of the Strategic Planning Committee held on 23 July 2020 were confirmed
as a true record.
Councillor Howe offered his heartfelt apologies to the Service Lead – Planning Strategy
and Development Management and committee members for his comments made at the
last meeting advising his behaviour was an effect of low blood sugar from diabetes.

56

Declarations of interest
Item 59. Changes to current planning system August 2020 consultation.
Councillor Paul Hayward, Personal, Clerk to All Saints, Chardstock and Newton
Poppleford and Harpford Parish Councils.
Item 60. Planning White Paper - implications and proposed response.
Councillor Paul Hayward, Personal, Clerk to All Saints, Chardstock and Newton
Poppleford and Harpford Parish Councils.
Item 61. Adoption and implementation of the revised Community Infrastructure Levy
Charging Schedule.
Councillor Dan Ledger, Personal, Seaton Town Councillor.
Item 61. Adoption and implementation of the revised Community Infrastructure Levy
Charging Schedule.
Councillor Eleanor Rylance, Personal, Broadclyst Parish Councillor.
Item 61. Adoption and implementation of the revised Community Infrastructure Levy
Charging Schedule.
Councillor Kevin Blakey, Personal, Cranbrook Town Councillor.
Item 61. Adoption and implementation of the revised Community Infrastructure Levy
Charging Schedule.
page 118

Strategic Planning Committee 16 September 2020

Councillor Mike Howe, Personal, Bishops Clyst Parish Councillor.
Item 61. Adoption and implementation of the revised Community Infrastructure Levy
Charging Schedule.
Councillor Olly Davey, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.
Item 61. Adoption and implementation of the revised Community Infrastructure Levy
Charging Schedule.
Councillor Paul Hayward, Personal, Clerk to All Saints, Chardstock and Newton
Poppleford and Harpford Parish Councils.
Item 61. Adoption and implementation of the revised Community Infrastructure Levy
Charging Schedule.
Councillor Sarah Chamberlain, Personal, Broadclyst Parish Councillor.
57

Matters of urgency
There were no matters of urgency discussed.

58

Confidential/exempt item(s)
There were no items that officers recommended should be dealt with requiring exclusion
of the public or press.

59

Changes to current planning system August 2020 consultation
The Service Lead – Planning Strategy and Development Management referred to an 8
weeks consultation document issued by Government on 6 August 2020 on the proposed
changes to the current planning system and outlined to Members the proposed
responses to the consultation.
Members noted some of the potential implications from the proposed changes:
 New methodology for the standard method for assessing housing need with a
greater emphasis on affordability which drives up the housing need in East Devon
to potentially 1614 homes per year;
 25% of all affordable homes should be first homes. The Service Lead – Planning
Strategy and Development Management referred to 2 options for the remainder of
the affordable housing requirement. Option 1, to distribute the remaining
affordable housing provision in accordance with local authority policy, which in
East Devon’s case would be a 70% - 30% split or option 2 to negotiate the tenure
mix separately;
 First homes would not be required on sites for build for rent homes, specialist
accommodation, sell for custom build or exclusively affordable housing.
 Local Plans and Neighbourhood Plans that have been submitted for examination
within 6 months would be exempt from including First Homes requirements;
 Pre applications currently going through the development management process
would also be exempt;
 To include local level varied discounts - The Service Lead – Planning Strategy
and Development Management emphasised the importance as the standard 30%
discount was unlikely to make homes affordable to many people but highlighted a
potential opportunity to increase the discount up to 50% which could have a
significant impact on delivering affordable homes in East Devon.
page 119

Strategic Planning Committee 16 September 2020





To raise the threshold for affordable housing from 10 or more unit sites to up to 50
unit sites in urban areas. In East Devon these sites would include Exmouth,
Honiton, Seaton and Sidmouth. – Members noted the number of affected sites
was likely to be small therefore the loss of affordable housing would not be
significant. Members also noted a wider implication about whether this would
generally help the smaller or medium sized developers;
Permission in principle was proposed to extend to sites to over 10 dwellings in
size and to introduce a new fee structure and publicity arrangements. Members
noted that East Devon had not received a single application for permission in
principle and that customers favoured the outline planning permission route.

The Chairman thanked the Service Lead – Planning Strategy Development Management
and welcomed non-committee members to speak.
The Portfolio Holder Sustainable Homes and Communities raised the followings points:
 Clarification was sought on first homes in East Devon and the 30% discount of
market value. Concerns were raised that there was a great need for social
housing and affordable to rent housing which would reduce the number of
affordable housing we have available to rent. In response the Service Lead –
Planning Strategy Development Management reassured members that the
proposed response was answered in consultation with the Housing Service who
had raised some concerns about how this would impact on housing providers
which had been addressed in the response to question 8.
 Comments were made about whether it would be appropriate to not agree with
either options to question 8. It was advised it was for members to decide but
officer’s preference was to secure the same mix of affordable housing from the
remainder of the affordable housing based on our existing policy.
The Chairman welcomed comments from committee members.
Committee Members discussions covered:
 Concerns were raised about the algorithm used to determine local housing need;
 A Suggestion was made to request more specific and detailed information about
the working of the algorithm;
 It was commented that although the central forecast may sound good in
Parliament it does not show any relevance to local democracy and reality;
 Cross party agreement that central government had got it wrong;
 Concerns were raised that we were building houses we did not need and that we
need to maximise social housing or affordable housing numbers. It was
disappointing that national government had failed to embrace the need to build
only the houses we need on the sites rather than making a profit;
 A comment was made about the table on page 18 - it was pertinent in terms of
setting out the former GESP areas for local authorities and that projected housing
requirements under the new algorithm and that if we were still working together
with Exeter the overall percentage required would be lower. In response the
Leader referred to a key comment made by the Prime Minster in a recent webinar
he had attended and said if we had continued with GESP with those large scale
allocations all over the GESP area those would probably be irreversible, and said
a bullet had been dodged;
 A suggestion was made to strengthen the Service Lead – Planning Strategy and
Development Management wording in his consultation response in relation to the
overall numbers;
 Members concurred it was a comprehensive and excellent report;
page 120

Strategic Planning Committee 16 September 2020















The Leader thanked the Chairman of the Strategic Planning Committee for his
valued input throughout the preparation of the report and acknowledged the close
working relationship with the Service Lead – Planning Strategy and Development
Management;
Clarification was sought on the evidence from the algorithm numbers and the uplift
in the number of houses that were expected to be built. In response the Service
Lead – Planning Strategy and Development Management advised it was to do
with supply and demand and said logically if there was an oversupply of houses
compared to demand house prices would come down. He also referred to other
factors that would impact on the affordability gap including economic changes,
increased lending to first time buyers and increased salaries;
We need to change our focus and build houses for people to live in, not for profit.
To use our Housing Forums and Panels to come up with ways of providing better
housing for people;
Clarification was sought on how the district council that has two thirds of AONB
build in an AONB area that is protected. The ratio of affordability will be greater
than the area we can build in. The Service Lead – Planning Strategy and
Development Management agreed with the comments and said we are a heavily
constrained district and referred to the White Paper referring to taking constraints
into account and suggested some of the comments would be better made in
response to the White Paper. He emphasised the need to fully understand how
the government hoped to take account of these issues and how that would impact
on the figures which had been addressed in the comments to the questions in the
White Paper;
Concerns were raised about the table on page 18 that the numbers did not add up
and a suggestion was made to make sure the figures were correct before going
out;
A suggestion was made to amend the resolution to reflect discussions;
Concerns were raised on the impact of Covid-19 on the entire economy;
Concerns were raised that the report did not tackle climate change or address
strategic transport infrastructure. As a country we are trying to meet a 2050
carbon neutral deadline. A suggestion was made to add something to the
response about tackling transport issues. In response the Service Lead –
Planning Strategy and Development Management advised he could add
something into the consultation and also confirmed the issues raised had been
addressed in the White Paper in question 8 about standard methods;
Reference was made to the lack of evidence presented for question 8 and a
suggestion was made to include the last housing needs review East Devon
undertook through independent consultants.

The following amendment to the recommendation was proposed by Councillor Ian
Thomas and seconded by Councillor Paul Arnott.
The committee to note the report and agree the proposed responses to the consultation
and we publish our response to the consultation and in both the covering letter and
publicity express our profound concerns to the algorithm used.
The Planning Barrister sought clarification whether a response to one of the specific
questions would be better amended to reflect the algorithm that is being used. In
response Cllr Thomas advised it would not and said he was not comfortable with the
scale changing in numbers based on the information received and would like to see and
understand the detail of the algorithm.
page 121

Strategic Planning Committee 16 September 2020

The Chairman requested that a vote take place on the motion. The motion was put to
committee and with an overall majority the motion was carried with no abstentions.
RESOLVED:
That the proposed responses to the consultation be noted and agreed and to
publish our responses to the consultation and in both the covering letter and
publicity express our profound concerns to the algorithm used be agreed
60

Planning White Paper - implications and proposed response
The Service Lead – Strategic Planning and Development Management gave a brief
overview of the problems with the current planning system and the government’s vision
for the system as detailed in the White Paper.
Members noted the consultation seeks to focus on net gain rather than harm, to move
democracy forward in the planning process to give neighbourhoods and communities a
more meaningful voice, help businesses to expand, support developers and promote
improvements to the countryside and prosperity in our villages, towns and cities.
The Service Lead – Strategic Planning and Development Management referred
Members to the three main pillars detailed in the consultation.
Pillar One - Planning for Development which sets out the key proposals relevant to land
use plan making, including setting out a national set target of 300,000 homes per annum,
removing the 5 year land supply and duty to co-operate, identifying growth renewal and
protected land areas and updating the NPPF so that it becomes the primary source of
development control guidance.
The Service Lead Strategic Planning and Development Management addressed a
number of key issues which included:
 It was unclear how local constraints were to be taken into account and by whom;
 A lack of strategy for where growth is accommodated across England;
 The calculator only focused on growth where it previously occurred and where the
affordability gap is at its greatest without consideration as to whether or not that is
the appropriate response or a clear methodology for doing so.
Members noted that although simplified local plans were to be welcomed it was unclear
exactly how the 13 months process could be achieved and it appeared to show less
engagement with our communities on planning issues and also the welcome of the single
sustainability test but lacked detail about how this would operate and how it would differ
from the current system.
Pillar two – Planning for beautiful and sustainable places sets out to improve the quality
of new development coming forward and proposes a national model design code and a
revised manual for streets to complement the existing national design guide and for each
authority to have a chief officer for design and place making
Two key issues had been raised:
 Although a greater emphasis on design was clearly welcomed the upfront design
coding appeared to be in conflict with a 30 months’ timescale for local plan
preparation. Members noted for local plans design coding was time consuming
and to try and complete this within a 30 months’ timescale was problematic;
 A significant lack of resource issues.
page 122

Strategic Planning Committee 16 September 2020

Pillar Three – Planning for infrastructure and connected places. Sets out to improve the
way in which contributions towards infrastructure associated with new development is
made, to improve certainty and transparency by introducing a new fixed rate
infrastructure level which would replace the S106 legal agreements and community
infrastructure levy.
The key issues raised included:
 The lack of detail in terms of the new infrastructure levy and how that would work
and whether it would achieve the benefits that the consultation had suggested;
 It had the potential to be as complicated as the Community Infrastructure Levy;
 It was unclear what the consequences might be in delivering affordable housing.
Members welcomed the increased flexibility on spend but noted it did raise the question
about whether or not it would use substantially more funding for infrastructure especially
as there was a massive shortfall in funding for infrastructure.
The Service Lead – Strategic Planning and Development Management referred to the
final section of the consultation about how these changes would be delivered and
addresses some key elements:
 Planning fees to continue to be set on a national basis;
 A review to identify and eliminate outdated regulations;
 A new performance framework is to be established.
The Chairman thanked the Service Lead – Planning Strategy Development Management
for his report and welcomed comments from non-committee members.
Points raised by non-committee members included:
 The forensic, astute and well written draft response was welcomed;
 Clarification was sought on the local plan and timings and a suggestion was
raised to be a bit more detailed in that response emphasising that 30 months is
too much of a stretch; In response the Chairman advised it would depend on how
much consultation the government have set for us to undertake within our local
plan which will dictate how long it will take for a local plan to come through;
 It was an absolute disgrace that there was no mention of social housing. A
suggestion was made to include an objection to the fact that there was no
provision for social housing;
 A suggestion was made for members to support the improvement of digital
planning as it is clear the public want access to documents.
The Chairman welcomed comments from committee members.





Clarification was sought on page 64 para. 4.60. It mentions that energy efficiency
standards potentially will be taken away from local authority areas and handed
over to a national planning framework. In response the Service Lead – Planning
Strategy and Development Management advised building control would have
greater powers with less control through the planning process. This approach
was detailed in the Future Homes consultation from earlier in the year to which a
government response is awaited;
Concerns were raised on overturns and reference was made to question 7b on
page 42;
Concerns were raised on the abolition of the current need for sustainability
assessment and addressed the point of developing sustainable communities, not
page 123

Strategic Planning Committee 16 September 2020







just houses but other services too, educational services, employment services,
economical services and leisure services. This seems to have been abolished in
the new proposal;
Concerns were raised about the removal of the duty to co-operate;
It was pointed out the fundamental point of the paper was that it was a massive
centralisation;
Concerns were raised to the answer to question 9a on page 49 and suggested the
answer should be ‘no’ because it is undemocratic and lacks scrutiny. The Service
Lead – Planning Strategy and Development Management advised that he did not
have these concerns as the process would ensure there would be appropriate
scrutiny and engagement through the local plan preparation process but was
happy to revise the text if Members were concerned;
It was commented that it was important to answer yes to question 9a because the
work for the local plan would either prove or disprove these allegations instead of
going through it at a later date with an unfeasible application.

Councillor Ian Thomas proposed the following amendment to the motion which was
seconded by Councillor Paul Arnott.
The Committee note the report and agree the proposed responses to the consultation
and we express our concern of the proposed over centralisation of the planning process.
The seconder of the motion, Councillor Paul Arnott proposed the following amendment to
the motion.
The Committee note the report and agree the proposed responses to the consultation
and we express our concerns over the lack of consideration for social housing and the
lack of scrutiny resulting from the proposed centralization of planning powers.
The proposer of the motion, Councillor Ian Thomas confirmed he was in agreement and
said it was a balance between not moving away from making this salient fundamental
point.
Councillor Nick Hookway emphasised the importance of raising our serious concerns
about the lack of scrutiny. Councillor Mike Allen supported Councillor Hookway’s
concerns as a proposal.
The proposer, Councillor Thomas advised he was not prepared to accept the
amendment to the motion, not because he did not agree with it but because he did not
know the views of the other Members.
The Chairman requested Members to vote on a straw poll to show their support for
Councillor Hookway’s proposed amendment to question 9a in relation to the answer
should be no as the results would be undemocratic and lack scrutiny. The straw poll was
put to committee with a clear majority of yes and 1 abstention.
The proposer, Councillor Thomas and the seconder, Councillor Arnott acknowledged the
support from Members.
The Chairman requested that a vote take place on the following amended motion.
Members to note the report and agree the proposed responses to the consultation with
the response to question 9a to be No as undemocratic and due to lack of scrutiny and we
page 124

Strategic Planning Committee 16 September 2020

express our concern of the proposed over centralisation of the planning process and the
committee also notes the lack of consideration for social housing and lack of scrutiny.
The amended motion was put to committee and was carried with a clear majority and 1
abstention.
RESOLVED:
The proposed responses to the consultation with the response to question 9a to
be No as undemocratic and due to lack of scrutiny and we express our concern of
the proposed over centralisation of the planning process and the committee also
notes the lack of consideration for social housing and lack of scrutiny be noted
and agreed.

61

Adoption and implementation of the revised Community
Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule
Members considered the Service Lead – Planning Strategy and Development
Management’s report summarising the outcome of the examination into the revised
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Draft Charging Schedule. The report also detailed
the final version of the Charging Schedule for approval setting out the process for
bringing the revised Charging Schedule into effect.
Members noted the revised Charging Schedule had zero rated Cranbrook resulting in
infrastructure being delivered through S106 agreements to ensure greater onsite delivery
by developers to ensure more timely delivery of infrastructure.
Points raised during discussion included:
 Clarification on the motivation for encouraging out of town centre retail. In
response the Service Lead – Strategy and Development Management advised
that the charging schedule did not seek to encourage out of town retail but that the
charges were to be levied based on their viability to ensure that developments
were paying the appropriate rates towards delivering infrastructure;
 Concerns raised that Sidmouth and Budleigh Salterton will have no affordable
housing;
 Clarification on why there is a flat rate of higher CIL being applied to Sidmouth
and Budleigh Salterton. In response the Service Lead – Planning Strategy and
Development Management advised the evidence taken from the viability
assessment work showed that those areas can afford to pay a higher rate of CIL
and still achieve policy compliant levels of affordable housing;
 Clarification sought on the shortfall of infrastructure funding referred to in
paragraph 1.6. It was advised CIL was never designed to be funding for all the
infrastructure requirements, we would need to look at other funding sources from
central government, Homes England etc.;
 Concerns raised on the impact of Covid-19 and government expenditure;
 Clarification sought on the figures in figure 1 on page 76. It was advised retail
within town centres have never been charged to encourage retail units to be built
within the town centres where we want them to be built;
 People actually want affordable homes instead of care homes so surprised to read
care homes will have zero CIL contributions considering we all know they make a
good profit. The Service Lead – Planning Strategy and Development
Management advised that the viability of all types of care homes meant that they
could not afford to pay CIL.
page 125

Strategic Planning Committee 16 September 2020

The Chairman, Councillor Dan Ledger proposed the motion and was seconded by the
Vice Chairman, Councillor Olly Davey.
The motion was put to the committee and carried with no abstentions.
RESOLVED:
1. That the outcome of the Examination into the Community Infrastructure
Levy Draft Charging Schedule be noted.
2. Recommend to Full Council that the revised Community Infrastructure Levy
Charging Schedule attached to Appendix A be approved with effect from 1
February 2021.
The Chairman closed the meeting.

Attendance List
Councillors present:
P Arnott
M Allen
K Blakey
S Chamberlain
O Davey (Vice-Chairman)
P Hayward
N Hookway
M Howe
B Ingham
D Ledger (Chairman)
A Moulding
E Rylance
P Skinner
I Thomas
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
M Armstrong
D Bickley
S Bond
B De Saram
P Faithfull
S Jackson
V Johns
G Jung
P Millar
J Rowland
E Wragg
Officers in attendance:
Wendy Harris, Democratic Services Officer
Debbie Meakin, Democratic Services Officer
Ed Freeman, Service Lead Strategic Planning and Development Management
Henry Gordon Lennox, Strategic Lead Governance and Licensing
Shirley Shaw, Planning Barrister
page 126

Strategic Planning Committee 16 September 2020

Mark Williams, Chief Executive
Councillor apologies:
K McLauchlan

Chairman

Date:

page 127

Agenda Item 9g
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Planning Committee held at Online via the Zoom
App on 9 September 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 10.03 am and ended at 12.08 pm

145

Minutes of the previous meeting
The minutes of the Planning Committee held on 29 July 2020 were confirmed as a true
record.
Councillor Skinner sought clarification following Councillor Faithfull’s accusations made
at Full Council that Members of the Planning Committee do not declare interests.
Councillor Skinner advised in response to these accusations he would seek advice from
the Monitoring Officer and he strongly emphasised that committee members have a duty
to ensure that this committee is absolutely coherent in the way of its honesty and
integrity.
In response the Chairman advised members to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer if
they had an issue with regards to probity.

146

Declarations of interest
Minute 148. 20/1482/FUL and 20/1483/LBC (Other) - COLY VALLEY.
Councillor Mike Howe, Personal, Known very well to the applicant of the planning
application and advised he would abstain from voting.
Minute 149. 20/1049/FUL (Other) - DUNKESWELL AND OTTERHEAD.
Councillor Colin Brown, Pecuniary, Owner of the property and was removed to the virtual
lobby during the discussion, debate and vote of this application.
Minute 149. 20/1049/FUL (Other) - DUNKESWELL AND OTTERHEAD.
Councillor Mike Howe, Personal, As Chairman of the previous Development
Management Committee had a close working relationship with Councillor Brown as Vice
Chairman and advised he would abstain from taking part in this application..
Minute 149. 20/1049/FUL (Other) - DUNKESWELL AND OTTERHEAD.
Councillor Olly Davey, Personal, Known to Councillor Brown in a working relationship.
Minute 149. 20/1049/FUL (Other) - DUNKESWELL AND OTTERHEAD.
Councillor Philip Skinner, Personal, Known to Councillor Brown as a member of the
Planning Committee and is a member of the same political group.
Minute 150. 20/0842/FUL (Minor) - EXMOUTH LITTLEHAM.
Councillor Bruce De Saram, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.
Minute 150. 20/0842/FUL (Minor) - EXMOUTH LITTLEHAM.
Councillor Joe Whibley, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.
Minute 150. 20/0842/FUL (Minor) - EXMOUTH LITTLEHAM.
Councillor Olly Davey, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.
page 128

Planning Committee 9 September 2020

Minute 150. 20/0842/FUL (Minor) - EXMOUTH LITTLEHAM.
Councillor Philip Skinner, Personal, Lived at Maer Farm between the age of 5 to 24.
Minute 150. 20/0842/FUL (Minor) - EXMOUTH LITTLEHAM.
Councillor Steve Gazzard, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.
Minute 150. 20/0842/FUL (Minor) - EXMOUTH LITTLEHAM.
Councillor Tony Woodward, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.
147

Planning appeal statistics
The Committee noted the Development Manager’s report setting out 14 appeal decisions
notified and was pleased to report that 11 appeals had been dismissed with only 3
allowed.
Members’ attention was drawn to the 3 appeals allowed. The Development Manager
referred to planning application 19/1525/FUL – Pendor, Exmouth Road, Colaton Raleigh.
The Inspector had disagreed with Members decision to refuse on sustainability grounds
determining that the location, as a whole, did have acceptable facilities and allowed the
appeal. Members noted the Development Manager did not agree with the Inspectors
decision as it was contrary to the Local Plan.
The second appeal related to planning application 19/1962/LBC – Fiddles Reach,
Preston Farm, Upottery, Honiton. Although the Inspector had accepted the proposed
works would result in some changes to the listed building and its features, it was
determined the changes would not be harmful to the building and allowed the appeal.
Finally, planning application 19/2233/FUL – Coldharbour Farm, East Hill, Ottery St Mary,
EX11 1QL. The Inspector had disagreed with Members decision to refuse on
sustainability grounds determining the location of the site was an acceptable distance
from the settlement and was an acceptable walking distance of amenities and therefore
allowed the appeal.
Finally the Development Manager updated Members on an appeal that had been allowed
by the Planning Inspectorate for planning application 19/1351/FUL – Land at Liverton
Business Park that Members had previously considered. Members noted that a third
party had submitted a Judicial Review against the decision on the following grounds
which would go before High Court for determination:
1. The Inspector gave too much weight to National Energy Policy and that policy was
dated;
2. If the National Energy Policy was relevant the Inspector failed to apply it properly;
3. A breach of natural justice that the application was dealt with by way of written
representation.
The Development Manager advised Members would be notified when a decision had
been made.

148

20/1482/FUL and 20/1483/LBC (Other) - COLY VALLEY
Applicant:
Mr Hal Johnson
page 129

Planning Committee 9 September 2020

Location:
3 Sunnyside, South Street, Colyton, EX24 6EP.
Proposal:
Take down section of garden wall and re-build.
RESOLVED:
(20/1482/FUL) Approved as per Officer recommendation.
(20/1483/LBC) Approved as per Officer recommendation.
149

20/1049/FUL (Other) - DUNKESWELL AND OTTERHEAD
Applicant:
Colin and Jenny Brown and Wheatley-Brown.
Location:
Court Hall, Monkton, Honiton, EX14 9QH.
Proposal:
Conversion of an existing hotel/guest house (C1) to form a single, independent
dwellinghouse (C3)
RESOLVED:
Approved as per Officer recommendations.

150

20/0842/FUL (Minor) - EXMOUTH LITTLEHAM
Applicant:
Littleham 2010 Limited.
Location:
Land Adjacent To The Meetings, Maer Lane, Exmouth, EX8 5DD.
Proposal:
Conversion of disused agricultural building to create one dwelling, including construction
of single storey extension and demolition of outbuildings. Construction of new access
and change of use of land from agricultural to domestic to facilitate the provision of two
car parking spaces to serve existing dwelling.
RESOLVED:
Approved as per Officer recommendation.

151

20/0652/FUL (Minor) - SIDMOUTH TOWN
Applicant:
Lily and Violeta Lunan.
Location:
6 Willoughby House, Peak Hill Road, Sidmouth, EX10 0NW.
Proposal:
page 130

Planning Committee 9 September 2020

Proposed Terrace, access bridge and balustrade. Alterations and new door and new
rooflights to north elevation.
RESOLVED:
Deferred for Officers to seek to negotiate amended designs for the balustrades and
privacy screens, and to negotiate an increased height to the privacy screens.
Members considered that a more traditional design of balustrades is required, that the
wooden hit and miss privacy screens need to be of a more sympathetic design and that
the privacy screens should be increased in height. This changes are required in order to
provide an acceptable visual impact to the building and AONB and to ensure adequate
privacy for the neighbouring residents.
152

20/0228/FUL (Minor) - WEST HILL AND AYLESBEARE
Applicant:
Littleham 2010 Limited.
Location:
Barns At Barton Farm, Village Way, Aylesbeare, EX5 2FF.
Proposal:
Conversion of two agricultural buildings into five residential dwellings with access,
landscaping and all other associated development.
RESOLVED:
Approved as per Officer recommendations.

Attendance List
Councillors present:
E Wragg (Chairman)
S Chamberlain (Vice-Chairman)
C Brown
O Davey
B De Saram
S Gazzard
M Howe
D Key
G Pook
P Skinner
J Whibley
T Woodward
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
P Arnott
S Bond
P Faithfull
C Gardner
N Hookway
G Jung
page 131

Planning Committee 9 September 2020

Officers in attendance:
Chris Rose, Development Manager
Shirley Shaw, Planning Barrister
Anita Williams, Principal Solicitor (and Deputy Monitoring Officer)
Wendy Harris, Democratic Services Officer
Amanda Coombes, Democratic Services Officer
Councillor apologies:
K Bloxham
A Colman
K McLauchlan
G Pratt

Chairman

Date:

page 132

Agenda Item 9h
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Audit and Governance Committee held at Online
via the Zoom App on 24 September 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 2.30 pm and ended at 4.29 pm

33

Public speaking
There were no members of the public wishing to speak.

34

Minutes of the previous meeting
The minutes of the Audit and Governance Committee held on 30 January 2020 were
confirmed as a true record.

35

Declarations on interest
Statement of Accounts 2019/20.
Councillor Paul Hayward, Personal, Minute 47 is the clerk to various parish councils.

36

Matters of urgency
None

37

Confidential/exempt item(s)
None

38

Internal Audit Outturn Report 2019-20
The Audit and Governance Committee agreed the 2019-20 Internal Audit Plan at its
March 2019 meeting. The report provided an update on the outturn position of the
2019/20 Internal Audit Plan.
RESOLVED:
that the content of the Internal Audit Progress Report be noted.

39

Internal Audit Annual Audit Opinion Report 2019-20
The report provided Internal Audits overall opinion on the systems of governance, risk
and control at East Devon District Council. The Audit and Governance Committee
agreed the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan at its March 2019 meeting.
RESOLVED:
that the content of the Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion be noted.

40

Internal Audit Plan & Charter 2020-21

page 133

Audit and Governance Committee 24 September 2020

Alastair Woodland, Assistant Director SWAP introduced the Internal Audit Plan for
2020/21 which incorporated the ‘Internal Audit Charter’ that set out the operational
relationship between EDDC and the South West Audit Partnership (SWAP).
The Assistant Director for SWAP, together with the Council’s S151 Officer and in
consultation with the Senior Management Team and members of the Committee, had
produced an Audit Plan for 2020/21 that required the approval of the Audit and
Governance Committee. This was a flexible plan that could be amended during the year
to deal with shifts in priorities or new and emerging risks. Any changes to the plan would
be reported to the Committee.
RESOLVED:
that the Internal Audit Plan for 2020-21 and the Internal Audit Charter be approved.

41

Internal Audit Progress Report 2020-21
The report provided an update on the 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan as at September 2020.
The Committee requested that SWAP consider the layout of their reports to help with
member understanding and explore the possibility of links to previous reports when
referenced in current updates.
RESOLVED:
that the progress made in delivery of the 2020/21 internal audit plan and significant
findings be noted.

42

Independent External Assessment May 2020
Members were provided with the outcomes from the recent independent external
assessment for SWAP Internal Audit Services.
RESOLVED:
that the Independent External Assessment be noted.

43

External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update - GT
Steve Johnson, Engagement Manager Grant Thornton, provided a report on progress in
delivering their responsibilities as EDDC’s external auditors. He wished it minuted that the Audit
Plan would be resent out to the Committee members by email.
RESOLVED:
that the Progress report and Sector update be noted.

44

Informing the audit risk assessment 2019-20 responses - GT
Jackson Murray, Engagement Lead Grant Thornton stated the purpose of the report was
to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between the Council's
external auditors, Management and the Audit Committee, as 'those charged with
governance'. The report covered some important areas of the auditor risk assessment
page 134

Audit and Governance Committee 24 September 2020

where they were required to make inquiries of the Audit Committee under auditing
standards.
As part of the risk assessment procedures Grant Thornton required to obtain an
understanding of management processes and the Council's oversight of the following
areas:
· General Enquiries of Management
· Fraud
· Laws and Regulations
· Going Concern
· Related Parties
· Accounting Estimates
RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.
45

Revenue and Capital Outturn Report 2019-2020
The Finance Manager stated that the following report would be presented to Cabinet on
30 September 2020. The report was presented to Audit & Governance Committee to
inform the Committee of the financial Outturn position for 2019/20 and to note the
recommendations to Cabinet.
The draft accounts had been published along with the public inspection notice on the
Council’s website and were currently subject to external audit by the Council’s appointed
auditors Grant Thornton UK LLP and were presented elsewhere on the agenda.
RESOLVED:
that the Revenue and Capital Outturn position for 2019/20 and the recommendations to
Cabinet on 30 September 2020 be noted.

46

Review of Accounting Policies 2019/20
The Finance Manager presented the report which stated the good practice for the
Committee to approve the Accounting Policies to be adopted in advance of the
preparation of the Accounts. It was explained that this report would have been presented
to the March committee but unfortunately as a result of Covid-19 this meeting was
cancelled.
RESOLVED:
that the Accounting Policies for the 2019/20 Statement of Accounts be approved.

47

Statement of Accounts 2019/20
The draft statement of accounts had been published along with the public inspection
notice on the Council’s website and were currently subject to external audit by the
Council’s appointed auditors Grant Thornton UK LLP in line with the amended regulation
timetable as detailed in the report. The Accounts would be presented back to Committee
for approval once this work was completed, this was envisaged to be at the Committee’s
next meeting in November.

page 135

Audit and Governance Committee 24 September 2020

In answer to a question of the arrangements for the public to visibly view the accounts
during the present Covid-19 pandemic, the Strategic Lead Finance informed the
Committee that all the documents were electronically scanned and were mostly shown or
sent out in this format. If this was not a suitable form of viewing the accounts than printed
hard copies would posted out.
RESOLVED:
that the draft 2019/20 Statement of Accounts be received and the position on publishing
the Accounts and audit opinion be noted.
48

Risk Review
Risk information for the 2020/21 financial year was supplied to allow the Committee to
monitor the risk status of Strategic and Operational Risks. This followed the full review of
risks by responsible officers during May/June 2020.
RESOLVED:
that the current status of risks following the full risk review undertaken in May/June 2020
be noted.

49

RIPA update
At the meeting of 18 January 2018, Members agreed to receive an update on RIPA
activity throughout the year (Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act). The RIPA Senior
Responsible Officer advised that there had been no requests for RIPA authorisation
since the last committee. Members asked for a simple written explanation of RIPA to be
provided to the Committee at its next meeting this could then be used on the Council’s
website to inform the public of the powers available and any recent use made of them;
this being in line with some other authorities practice.

50

Audit and Governance Forward Plan
Members noted the contents of the Committee Forward Plan for 2020/21.
Items to be considered at the November committee included:
•
•
•
•

Statement of Accounts 2019/20 including Governance Statement
Letter of Representation
Audit Findings report
RIPA update

Attendance List
Councillors present:
S Hawkins (Chairman)
P Millar (Vice-Chairman)
D Barrow
J Bailey
F Caygill
S Gazzard
P Hayward

page 136

Audit and Governance Committee 24 September 2020

F King
G Pook
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
P Arnott
S Jackson
J Loudoun

Officers in attendance:
Amanda Coombes, Democratic Services Officer
Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance
Henry Gordon Lennox, Strategic Lead Governance and Licensing
Steve Johnson
John Symes, Finance Manager
Georgina Teale
Alastair Woodland
Jackson Murray, Grant Thornton
Councillor apologies:
P Twiss

Chairman

Date:

page 137

Agenda Item 9i
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Licensing and Enforcement Committee held On
line via the Zoom app on 3 September 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 11.20 am
41

Public Speaking
There were no members of the public who wished to speak.

42

Minutes of the previous meeting
The minutes of the meeting held on 27 July 2020 were agreed as a true record.

43

Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

44

Matters of urgency
There were no matters of urgency.

45

Confidential/exempt item(s)
There were no matters of urgency.

46

Quarterly Update report -September 2020
The Licensing Manager presented his report to the Committee. It provided an
update of the activities of the Licensing Service under the Licensing Act 2003,
Gambling Act 2005, taxi legislation and general licensing, including street trading
and pavement licensing.
The Licensing Manager highlighted that the licensing team covered many things
across East Devon. This included:
· All alcohol related matters.
· Taxis and private hire work.
· Gambling (excluding online betting)
· Street trading.
· Pavement Licensing
· Charitable collections
· Cemeteries and burial bookings.
The previous update provided to the committee was in February 2020 before the
impact of Covid 19 that has since impacted working procedures for licensing staff.
New and emergency legislation was introduced by the government over the
previous months and the Coronavirus Act 2020 introduced the need for licensed
premises to close and gave enforcement powers to Environmental Health Teams
and Trading Standards.
The Taxi and Private Hire Driver trade was also significantly challenged as a result
of the Coronavirus lockdown. A number of drivers and businesses continued to
provide essential transport for vulnerable members of the community.
page 138

Licensing and Enforcement Committee 3 September 2020

It was reported at the extraordinary meeting on 27th July that the responsibility for
issuing short term Pavement Licences would pass to district Councils in August.
These procedures were now in place, but despite the high profile and level of
awareness there have been fewer applications than were expected.
During discussions the following points were noted:
· In view of the fewer number of applications received for Pavement Licences
than expected, would the post of the new member of staff be taken up? The
Licensing Manager reported that this work had been very onerous on
licensing staff and it was still expected that this post would be needed;
although the post had not yet been filled.
· With regard to outdoor areas, were separate areas required for smokers and
non-smokers? The Government had given an exemption for licensed
premises to use outside areas until September 2021.
· Would Licensing staff be expected to carry out premises inspections soon?
This would be part of the Councils overall Covid 19 risk assessment.
· How many Pavement Licences had been received so far? There had been
two applications received by the Licensing Service, but more were expected.
· Is there an update by Licensing on the services ability to close premises if
they were not complying with Covid 19 regulations regarding such things as
social distancing. The Licensing Manager reported that were was continually
changing Government guidance on this area. There were 500 licensed
premises in East Devon and there had been no complaints received from
the public or police about failure to comply with Covid 19 guidelines.
·
RESOLVED that the report be noted
47

Licensing Act Policy consultation
Members received the report of Steve Saunders, Licensing Manager, which updated the
committee on the review of the Council’s Statement of Licensing (Act 2003) Policy and
sought approval to commence the consultation process on the draft policy which had
been updated in the light of recent changes in legislation and experience over the past
five years.
During discussions the following points were noted:
· Could more consideration be given to the public health impacts of the Licensing
policy. Although it was noted that public health at Devon County Council were a
consultee.
· Would like to see research carried out to see the effect of lockdown on the late
night trade of the lockdown and how much was saved by the police and other
agencies during this period.
· Designated Premises Supervisors should be held responsible for tidying any litter
produced by their customers outside their premises.
· Some of the problems caused in late night premises were customers consuming
alcohol bought in supermarkets prior to going out.
RESOLVED that approval be given to the draft Statement of Licensing Policy as
attached to the report, subject to addition of the point made above
regarding litter outside licensed premises and for the Licensing Service to
start the formal consultation process that was required by legislation.
page 139

Licensing and Enforcement Committee 3 September 2020

48

Taxi Fare Tariff
Members received the report of Steve Saunders, Licensing Manager which asked the
committee to note the new Hackney Carriage Fare Table following the public
consultation and to consider timeliness and procedures of future fare review processes.
During discussions the following points were noted:
· Is there a definition of soiling of taxis and the charges? The Licensing Service
normally mediated on any of these issues which arose each year. There was no
data available to show that taxi cab soiling by passengers had increased. The
website would be updated to add a comment regarding the Licensing Services
ability to mediate on taxi cab soiling issues.
· That for the sake of clarity, points 9 & 10 in Appendix B be added to the first
paragraph.
RESOLVED 1. that with the addition of the amendment made above, the Hackney
Carriage Table of Fares as attached to the report be adopted with
immediate effect.
2. that agreement be given that the Table of Fares be reviewed annually and
no earlier than 12 months after a previous review through an agreed
procedure.

49

Taxi Policy
Members received the report of Steve Saunders, Licensing Manager which informed the
committee on recent Government guidance issued in July 2020 with regard to the Taxi
Licensing Policy ahead of full implementation.
In response to a question it was noted that the Licensing Service had not received
sufficient data to make CCTV in taxi cabs mandatory and certainly not many complaints
from members of the public. It was noted that there was a considerable cost for drivers to
introduce CCTV in cabs and the recording equipment. The requirement for DBS checks
for taxi drivers was an additional cost, but other licensing authorities in Devon had
introduced a service for driers at a cost of £30 each whereby they would make on line
DBS checks for drivers every six months.
RESOLVED that the new statutory guidance which the Licensing Authority will have
regard to until it is full incorporated into the Councils Taxi Licensing Policy be noted.

50

Covid 19 Taxi Policy
Members received the report of Steve Saunders, Licensing Manager, which asked the
Committee to note the COVID-19 Taxi Policy and sought approval to continue adoption
of the policy. It was noted that the taxi trade had significantly reduced trade during the
lockdown period and were continuing to see a reduction in customers. Some drivers had
chosen to SORN their vehicles to save money.
RESOLVED1. that the temporary adoption of the Emergency Covid 19 policy introduced
in April 2020 be noted.
2. that its continuing use, in conjunction with the full taxi policy, be approved
until further review by this committee at a later date
page 140

Licensing and Enforcement Committee 3 September 2020

Attendance List
Councillors present:
J Whibley (Chairman)
K Bloxham (Vice-Chairman)
M Chapman
A Dent
S Gazzard
S Jackson
G Pratt
B Taylor
T Wright
L Jeffery
T Woodward
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
S Hawkins
P Millar
Officers in attendance:
Christopher Lane, Democratic Services Officer
Giles Salter, Solicitor
Stephen Saunders
Anita Williams, Principal Solicitor (and Deputy Monitoring Officer)
Councillor apologies:
F Caygill
N Hookway
P Jarvis

Chairman

Date:

page 141

